Agenda No. 5

Proposal is to move from a system where multiple declarations of interest are made on a single sheet of paper by only those Councillors with an interest to declare, to a system whereby all Councillors attending a meeting be required either to declare an interest in matters or to declare as no known interest.

This would require a personalised sheet of paper for each Councillor attending a meeting to make such declarations or otherwise, which would be mandatory. This personalised sheet would be handed to the Town Clerk or Chair before leaving any meeting, providing a comprehensive record with no omissions.

The benefit of the proposed system would allow for any late arrival to make any necessary declaration, which the current system does not easily allow for, it would also allow for any Councillor who finds during the course of a meeting that a declaration of interest might become appropriate even if not anticipated at the commencement of a meeting.

This would remove much, if not all, of the ambiguity surrounding the current system and would not penalise a late arrival nor an unexpected necessity to make a declaration, this the current system does not easily accommodate.

It is my understanding that on one recent occasion a late arriving Councillor did not find the opportunity to enter a declaration on the relevant sheet, but did leave the room at the appropriate time, this leading to potential for reporting to Standards. On another very recent occasion, a Councillor did not anticipate the implications of a planning application until moments before it was due to be discussed, with realisation that neighbours to the property concerned were acquaintances or friends who might be adversely affected.

It is my opinion that the current system is no longer fit for purpose, as has been demonstrated by recent events and I would therefore commend this proposal to Full Council.

Pete Samuels

Agenda No. 7

MAYOR'S REPORT TO SALTASH TOWN COUNCIL 1ST FEBRUARY 2018

Since the last Town Council meeting, the Mayor has attended:

| Friday 19th January | Saltash Sailing Club Cadet presentation evening |
|---------------------------------|---|
| Saturday 20th January | Saltash Branch RNA Annual Conference |
| Saturday 20th January | Dementia Voice PL12 Veterans Group 1st Birthday Celebrations |
| Monday 22 nd January | Opening of the 28 th Annual Saltash Music, Speech & Drama Festival |
| Monday 22 nd January | Open the Mayor's Drama Award of the Saltash Music, Speech & Drama Festival |
| Friday 26th January | RNLI Share Our Soup Event |
| Tuesday 30th January | "Little Shop of Horrors" saltash.net school production |

Agenda No. 8

Monthly Crime Figures – no updates since last meeting. Please see Full Town Council Reports Pack 11.01.18. on the website for latest figures.

Agenda No. 9



www.communityenterprisespl12.co.uk

4 Fore Street, Saltash PL12 6JL

Report to Saltash Town Council: February 1 2018

It has not been long since we last reported to you, so here is a quick update. Directors met formally on January 24.

Community Transport Our biggest decision was to keep the Derriford service going. We are hoping to move rapidly to a different form of Licence (s22) which will not only enable us to claim fuel tax refunds and achieve more grant aid, but to use bus stops en route to the hospital which may enable us to attract different passenger journeys. This should help reduce our current losses. There will be publicity about this in due course.

18 Belle Vue Road We still have one vacant room to let, and we would appreciate hearing from any councillor who knows anyone who might be interested in considering a rental. We hear that prospects for funding Citizens Advice Cornwall have improved.

Health and Care The NHS St Barnabas Group met recently after a 5-month gap. It was poorly attended by the key managers, and no news of any action to implement earlier ideas was given. This was the cause of much disappointment for community representatives. The best we can hope for is an early date for a fully attended meeting to look at the actions needed in the town on Minor Injuries services and beds. The two Patient Groups at the local Surgeries which we support informally are a great asset to the town, aiding our capacity to speak up on important issues. Additionally, a pilot "Lifestyle Course" run by patients at the Saltash Health Centre has received excellent feedback.

Dementia Voice The Tuesday Group at 4 Fore Street is still going strong, and the Veterans Group on alternate Saturday afternoons has just celebrated its first birthday. It has moved to SHADO as numbers have increased.

Other Enterprises and Activities All ticking over. We have several new ideas for Enterprises in the pipeline which will be brought forward as proposals are drafted.

Peter Thistlethwaite Chair January 29 2018

Agenda No. 10

No report. Please see Full Town Council Reports Pack 11.01.18. on the website for latest minutes.

Agenda No. 12 - Minutes for Approval

DRAFT Full Town Council Minutes 11th January 2018 – Please see website.

DRAFT Town Council (Planning) Minutes 23rd January 2018 – Please see website.

Agenda No. 14 a & b

Saltash Town Council

Finance - December 2017

Income

| | Details | Net | VAT | Gross | S106 |
|--------------------------------------|---------------------------|-----------|-------|-----------|------|
| Allotment Income | | £1,253.34 | £0.00 | £1,253.34 | |
| Barclays | Loyalty Reward | £12.25 | £0.00 | £12.25 | |
| Churchtown Cemetery Income | | £2,349.00 | £0.00 | £2,349.00 | |
| Cornwall Council | Station Building Grant | £5,530.00 | £0.00 | £5,530.00 | |
| Daily Moorings | | £37.50 | £7.50 | £45.00 | |
| Guildhall Income | | £471.50 | £0.00 | £471.50 | |
| Photocopying | | £3.75 | £0.75 | £4.50 | |
| Public Sector Deposit Fund | Interest | £47.65 | £0.00 | £47.65 | |
| St. Stephens Cemetery - Income | | £309.00 | £0.00 | £309.00 | |

Expenses

| Supplier | Details | Net | VAT | Gross | S106 |
|-------------------------|---|------------|-----------|------------|------|
| Amazon | Stationary | £27.83 | £5.59 | £33.42 | |
| Barclays | Bank Charges | £48.98 | £0.00 | £48.98 | |
| Brandon Hire | Hire of Fencing | £36.00 | £7.20 | £43.20 | |
| Chubb Fire Ltd | Fire Extinguisher - Rental Fees | £38.76 | £7.75 | £46.51 | |
| Consortium | Stationary | £40.74 | £8.14 | £48.88 | |
| Consortium | Stationary | £59.18 | £11.84 | £71.02 | |
| Cormac Solutions Ltd | 3 x Toilet Cleaning - April - November 2017 | £7,847.03 | £1,569.41 | £9,416.44 | |
| Cormac Solutions Ltd | Belle Vue Toilets - Repairs | £58.40 | £11.68 | £70.08 | |
| Cormac Solutions Ltd | Belle Vue Toilets - Repairs | £68.00 | £13.60 | £81.60 | |
| Cornwall Council | Rates - Maurice Huggins Room | £73.61 | £0.00 | £73.61 | |
| Cornwall Council | Rates - Guildhall | £739.00 | £0.00 | £739.00 | |
| Cornwall Council | Rates - Waterside Toilets | £70.00 | £0.00 | £70.00 | |
| Cornwall Council | Election Costs 2017 | £14,333.84 | £0.00 | £14,333.84 | |

| Cornwall Pension Fund | Pension Payment - December 2017 | £4,202.83 | £0.00 | £4,202.83 | |
|------------------------------------|------------------------------------|-----------|---------|-----------|--|
| Crown Copiers Ltd | Copier Maintenance | £112.49 | £22.50 | £134.99 | |
| Crown Copiers Ltd | Copier Maintenance | £184.88 | £36.98 | £221.86 | |
| Dainton Portable Buildings | Hire of Waterfront Unit | £128.58 | £25.72 | £154.30 | |
| DB Autos | Vehicle Checks | £12.00 | £0.00 | £12.00 | |
| Devon & Cornwall Maintenance | Station Building | £647.00 | £129.40 | £776.40 | |
| EDF - Elwell Woods | Elwell Woods - Electricity | £67.35 | £2.93 | £70.28 | |
| EDF - Xmas Lights - Point 1 | Electricity - Xmas Lights | £11.44 | £0.50 | £11.94 | |
| EDF - Xmas Lights - Point 2 | Electricity - Xmas Lights | £17.25 | £0.75 | £18.00 | |
| EDF - Xmas Lights - Point 3 | Electricity - Xmas Lights | £14.32 | £0.62 | £14.94 | |

| | J | | I. | I. | |
|------------------------------------|---------------------------------|-----------|---------|-----------|--|
| EDF - Xmas Lights - Point 4 | Electricity - Xmas Lights | £14.32 | £0.62 | £14.94 | |
| EDF - Xmas Lights - Point 5 | Electricity - Xmas Lights | £10.48 | £0.46 | £10.94 | |
| EDF - Xmas Lights - Point 6 | Electricity - Xmas Lights | £21.08 | £0.92 | £22.00 | |
| EE | Mobile Phone Charges | £82.00 | £16.40 | £98.40 | |
| Efficient Comms Ltd | Telephone Charges | £49.72 | £9.94 | £59.66 | |
| Geoff Peggs | Professional Fees | £315.00 | £63.00 | £378.00 | |
| Glendale Grounds Maintenance | Grounds Maintenance | £1,480.00 | £296.00 | £1,776.00 | |
| Hays | Temp Staff | £1,326.77 | £265.35 | £1,592.12 | |
| Hays | Temp Staff | £507.50 | £101.50 | £609.00 | |
| Hays | Temp Staff | £395.14 | £79.03 | £474.17 | |
| Hilary Bridlegate | Station Building Expenses | £450.00 | £0.00 | £450.00 | |
| HMRC | PAYE Payment - December 2017 | £3,707.25 | £0.00 | £3,707.25 | |
| IRQ Systems Ltd | IT Maintenance | £257.87 | £51.57 | £309.44 | |
| Jackman Peckover | Boiler Expenses | £212.98 | £0.00 | £212.98 | |
| Livewire | Youth Work | £5,000.00 | £0.00 | £5,000.00 | |

| Lynher View Allotment Association | Community Chest | £400.00 | £0.00 | £400.00 | |
|---|--------------------------------|-----------|---------|-----------|--|
| Mayors Allowance | | £368.00 | £0.00 | £368.00 | |
| Otis | Lift Maintenance | £513.37 | £102.67 | £616.04 | |
| Petty Cash | | £81.76 | £0.00 | £81.76 | |
| Plan Support | Neighbourhood Plan Expenses | £2,825.00 | £0.00 | £2,825.00 | |
| Pyramid Electrical Services | Pontoon Expenses | £583.00 | £116.60 | £699.60 | |
| SAGE | Card Charges | £5.70 | £0.00 | £5.70 | |
| SAGE | Card Machine Charges | £28.00 | £5.60 | £33.60 | |

| Saltash DIY | Various Repairs/Tools | £358.07 | £71.61 | £429.68 | |
|-----------------------------------|--------------------------|------------|-----------|------------|--|
| Saltash DIY | Various Repairs/Tools | £204.42 | £40.88 | £245.30 | |
| Saltash Music & Drama Festival | Festival Fund | £1,000.00 | £0.00 | £1,000.00 | |
| Saltash Window Cleaning | Window Cleaning | £45.00 | £0.00 | £45.00 | |
| Screwfix | Various Repairs/Tools | £4.16 | £0.83 | £4.99 | |
| Screwfix | Various Repairs/Tools | £54.15 | £10.83 | £64.98 | |
| Screwfix | Various Repairs/Tools | £6.16 | £1.23 | £7.39 | |
| Staff Salaries | | £15,316.18 | £0.00 | £15,316.18 | |
| The Westcountry Group | Pontoon Expenses | £5,062.00 | £1,012.40 | £6,074.40 | |
| UK Fuels Ltd | Petrol - Mower | £46.37 | £9.27 | £55.64 | |
| Westcare | Stationary | £97.57 | £19.51 | £117.08 | |
| Westcare | Stationary | £34.95 | £6.99 | £41.94 | |
| Westcare | Stationary | £4.49 | £0.90 | £5.39 | |
| Westcare | Stationary | £32.99 | £6.60 | £39.59 | |
| WPS Insurance | Insurance | £2,365.80 | £0.00 | £2,365.80 | |
| | | | | , | |

Agenda No. 15A

Sheryll Murray MP original to JD

Councillor Jean Dent Saltash Town Council

ECEIVED 2 2 JAN 2018

Saltash Cornwall PL₁₂ 6JX

12 Lower Fore Street

19 January 2018

Our Ref: ZA32720

Re: St Barnabas Hospital

Further to your contact with my office, please find enclosed a letter I have received from NHS Kernow Clinical Commissioning Group, in respect of the above.

I appreciate you taking the time to contact me on this matter and should I be of any further assistance in the future, please do not hesitate to contact me again.

Kind regards

Sheryll Murray MP

Your Local Member of Parliament

Encl



6th December 2017

Sheryll Murray MP

The Parade Liskeard PL14 6AF Dr lain Chorlton Chair Sedgemoor Centre Priory Road St Austell PL25 5AS

Tel: 01726 627942 Email: <u>iain.chorlton2@nhs.net</u>

Dear Sheryll,

Re: St Barnabas Hospital Ref: ZA32720 Constituent: Councillor Jean Dent, Saltash Town Council, 12 Lower Fore Street, Saltash, Cornwall

Thank you for your letter dated 24th November 2017.

You will be aware that the future of all local services including community hospitals are being reviewed as part of our Sustainability and Transformation Plan, Shaping Our Future. This includes discussions regarding the future of St Barnabas Hospital Saltash. I understand that Jean Dent, Mayor of Saltash, is one of the many stakeholders currently involved in a group led by Phil Confue, Chief Executive, Comwall Partnership NHS Foundation Trust. This stakeholder group has been reviewing the service needs in the Saltash area and how we might best serve the local population. We remain committed to working with the local community to determine the future of local services in Saltash. The meetings have been fairly regular and the last meeting was expanded to a full day 'Sprint' event on 6th October 2017 where health and social care practitioners who work in Saltash met with voluntary sector organisations and those that run local community activities to see how we can jointly support people in the local community.

I have been assured that the Stakeholder Group will continue to meet to discuss the future of services in the Saltash area but if I can be of any further assistance, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Yours sincerely,

lain Chorlton

lain Charlton

Chair - Kernow Commissioning Group

Agenda No. 15B

From: Jill Cansfield

Sent: 22 January 2018 22:23

To: Jean Dent

Subject: Future of Saltash Tennis Centre

Dear Madam Mayor

I write to ask for your support for the continuation of tennis at Saltash Tennis Centre.

Cornwall County Council served notice on the annual roll over lease for the facility in 2017, followed by the release of a tender document a couple days ago which they require to be completed and returned by the 16th February 2018. This is totally unfair as a Business Plan needs to be up to date and presented in a way that captures up to date funding, year on year costs of running the club, the level of capital investment to make it fit for purpose and deliver the sustainability requirement within the 30 year lease. We would then have to identify funding sources, grants etc to support this investment and understand the affordability of the project all within a 3 week period!

There has been a tennis club at its present location for more than 70 years but since the formation of a unitary authority in Cornwall there has been no investment in the infrastructure, all works to try and keep functional hard courts and the club house being undertaken and funded by the club.

However, the club needs significant investment to replace the crumbling hard courts but also with regret, replace the two grass courts with all-weather courts. These can only be used subject to weather and in the summer months.

As you will know the Government is keen on supporting children of all ages giving them access to sports facilities in a local area, which is what Saltash Tennis Centre does. We have over 200 mini tennis players registered at our tennis club, not only from Saltash but from a wide country area. This enables them to play tennis throughout the year at a very low cost and with superb coaching with our Level 1 coach, as well as playing at other times and entering competitions should they wish to do so.

I would therefore ask you to do whatever you can in your power to support our Tennis Club.

Yours sincerely

Jill Cansfield Secretary – Saltash Tennis Centre

Agenda No. 15C

From: sue hooper

Sent: Tuesday, January 16, 2018 4:22 PM

To: Townclerk

Subject: Sincere thanks

Dear Ray,

May I on behalf of the management team of the Saltash Music Speech and Drama Festival, thank Saltash Town Council for the most generous donation of £1,000 towards the running of the festival as per our application in 2017.

This funding will certainly assist the Festival team to maintain the high standards that is rightly expected of a Festival of our longevity and quality.

This year will be our 28th Annual Festival, and we have warmly welcomed the Saltash Town Council's financial support over the past 28 years!

Thank you and the Saltash Town Council once again for your continued interest and support.

I feel sure you will advise Councillors of my letter of thanks on behalf of Saltash Festival.

Yours sincerely
Sue Hooper MBE
General Secretary
Saltash Music Speech and Drama Festival

Agenda No. 15D

From: Post Office Views **Sent:** 17 January 2018 08:00

To: enquiries

Subject: Post Office Ltd - Gordon Court PL12 4EF

Dear Mr Lane,

The attached letter provides some important information about the above named Post Office and what it might mean for you and our customers.

We regularly review feedback on our communication channels and we believe that email is the most effective way for us to communicate with you and to enable you to share the information with other parties, if you so wish. Therefore these communications are sent to you by email only.

Customer information materials will continue to be available in branch. Should you have any questions regarding the branch, please do not hesitate to contact us; our contact details are provided below.

www.postofficeviews.co.uk

Yours sincerely Audra Mirjah-Clarke

Post Office Ltd

How to contact us:

- comments@postoffice.co.uk
- FREEPOST Your Comments
- Customer Helpline: 03452 66 01 15 / Textphone: 03457 22 33 55
- www.postofficeviews.co.uk



Dear Sir/Madam

At the Post Office we are continually looking to refresh our network and ensure we meet our customer needs. I'm therefore pleased to let you know that we are planning to open a new Post Office in your area in Church Road Stores, Gordon Court, Saltash, PL12 4EF on Wednesday 14 February 2018 at 13:00.

The service will be one of our local style branches with a low-screened, open-plan Post Office service point carefully integrated into the retail counter. Customers will be able to carry out a wide range of Post Office transactions alongside retail purchases. The new service will offer long opening hours, with the Post Office opening hours in line with the retail business.

Details of the opening hours and the key products and services that will be available are provided overleaf. Please feel free to share this information with others who may be interested to hear about the new service. If there are any unforeseen changes which mean these dates change, posters will be displayed in store to let customers know.

We hope that you and the local community will support the Post Office network in your area.

Yours faithfully

Amanda McGinley

Amanda McGinley

Local Relationship Manager

How to contact us:

Please note this is the full address to use and no further address details are required

To get this information in a different format, for example, in larger print, audio or braille please contact the Customer Helpline on 03452 66 01 15 or Textphone 03457 22 33 55.

Post Office opening times & services available

Mon - Sun 07:00 - 22:00

Mail

First & Second Class mail

Stamps, stamp books (1st class 6 & 12 only, 2nd class 12 only)

Special stamps (Christmas issue only) & postage labels

Signed For

Special Delivery

Home shopping returns

Inland small, medium & large parcels

Express & contract parcels

British Forces Mail (BFPO)

International letters & postcards (inc. signed for & Airsure)

International parcels up to 2kg & printed papers up to 5kg

Articles for the blind (inland & international)

Royal Mail redirection service

Local Collect

Drop & Go

Withdrawals, deposits and payments

Post Office Card Account

Personal & Business Banking cash withdrawals, deposits & balance enquiries using a card. Also enveloped cheque deposits and barcoded deposit slips.

Postal orders

Moneygram

Bill payments

Automated bill payments (card or barcoded)

Key recharging

Travel

Pre-order travel money

Travel insurance referral

Mobile Top-ups & E vouchers

Cheques are NOT accepted as a method of payment

The operator or our Customer Helpline on 03452 66 01 15 will be happy to help you with any queries about product availability or provide you with details of maximum value of transactions. Customers can also shop online at www.postoffice.co.uk

Agenda No. 15E

From: Karen Lilley

Sent: 12 January 2018 12:09

To: enquiries

Subject: Request for Civic Parade - Saltash Regatta

Good afternoon,

On behalf of Saltash Regatta Committee, please may we request a Civic Parade to open the Saltash Regatta 2018. The date is Saturday 9th June 2018, the format will be as it was in 2017, leaving from Victoria gardens at 10.30 am. We would like to meet at 10.00 am please, to greet our guests and assemble the parade. The route will be through Fore Street, to Jubilee Green. We would like to ask the Mayor to announce the event as open and issue prizes to participants.

Thank you kindly for your consideration.

Regards Karen Lilley Chairperson

Agenda No. 15F

From: Peter Ryland

Sent: Tuesday, January 23, 2018 2:01 PM

To: Jean Dent

Cc: Townclerk, Danielle Frith, Diverse Events

Subject: Christmas Festival 2017

Jean

On behalf of the Chamber, I would like to thank STC for the support and positive feedback received from several councillors re the above. As you are aware, we took on responsibility for the event at relatively the eleventh hour and there were one or two hiccups but we believe that, overall, the event was a success and we are hoping to build on this for 2018.

We are already working on the planning for 2018 and will be submitting a S.106 application in the near future which, we hope, will be supported by STC and are looking at opportunities for the festival to be self-funding in the next few years.

I would especially like to thank the Services committee and its Chairman for its positivity expressed to my Vice Chairman who was the main kingpin of the event] at last week's meeting.

We believe that this Festival demonstrates the ability of the Chamber and STC to work together. Would you pass on the thanks of the Chamber to all councillors.

Peter Chairman Saltash Chamber of Commerce

Agenda No. 15G

7 Clear View Saltash Cornwall PL12 6HB

The Town Clerk Saltash Town Council The Guildhall Saltash

Jan. 25th 2018

Dear Sir/ Madam

On Tuesday afternoon January 23rd I was witness to an incident on the Waterside involving a person seen and dragged from the Tamar, supposedly having jumped from the bridge.

I would like to commend the prompt action taken by employees of the **Town** Council working at that time on the foreshore along with others resulting in bringing the person ashore and their close attention until the emergency services arrived. It is almost certain that without their vigilance and action in **responding to the situation a tragedy was** averted, given the conditions at the time and the state of the person involved.

The presence of a safety buoy on the jetty was critical in the incident, allowing those who came to the rescue to reach the victim who was clearly exhausted when pulled from the water.

Please make my commendation known to those involved.

Yours truly,

Bill Ryan SIN 124

Agenda No. 15H

Dear Madam Mayor,

I would like to volunteer as Tree Warden for Saltash. This would be an appointment by Saltash Town Council under the Cornwall Parish Tree Warden Scheme, supported nationally by the Tree Council.

My overall aim would be to preserve, renew and expand our established trees and wooded areas for the benefit of Saltash community.

The roles I hope to achieve would include:

- Advise the Town Council on issues involving trees, and look for their support in achieving the overall aims
- Liaise with Saltash Apple Project run by Sho Frank; with Saltash Environmental Action Group; and with other interested community groups
- Continue our previous Warden's oversight of Elwell Woods in particular, and trees in Saltash in general, identifying threats and seeking solutions, and identifying new projects
- Coordinate a proposed group of 'Tree Guardians' in Saltash, each keeping an eye on trees in their area, particularly any newly planted ones, and help identify sites for future planting.

I hope the Council are willing to support my application.

Adrian White 11 Essa Road PL12 4ED

Yours sincerely

Adrian White

Agenda No. 16 - Committee Minutes for Approval

DRAFT Staffing Committee Minutes 16th January 2018 – Please see website.

DRAFT Services Committee Minutes 17th January 2018 – Please see website.

DRAFT Staffing Committee Minutes 23rd January 2018 – Please see website.

Agenda No. 17 (STC Standing Orders – Approved – Current)



Saltash Town Council



Standing Orders

Contents

- **Section A Standing Orders**
- Section B Members of the Council and Code of Conduct
 - Meetings
 - Rules of debate
 - Members and the Code of Conduct
 - Allegations of breaches of the Code of Conduct
 - Dispensations
- **Section C Proper Officer**
- **Section D Full Council Meetings**
- **Section E Committees, Sub Committees and Working Groups**
- **Section F Business of Meetings**
- **Section G Conduct of Meetings**

SALTASH TOWN COUNCIL

STANDING ORDERS

Section A – Standing Orders

- 1. These Standing Orders apply to the meetings and actions of Saltash Town Council, and to its Committees and Sub Committees and supersede as and when required any delegated authorities as required and as may be in place from time to time.
- 2. Nothing within these Standing Orders may be taken as having precedence over relevant legislation and in particular the relevant provisions of the Local Government Act, 1972 Schedule 12, Part IV.
- 3. Subject to A4, Standing Orders may be suspended so far as regards any business at the meeting where its suspension is moved, accepting that this must not breach any legislation.
- 4. A motion to suspend Standing Orders shall not be moved under Standing Order (5), that is without notice of motion given in pursuance of Standing Order (4), unless there shall be present at least seven members of the Council.
- 5. These Standing Orders, including their Appendices, shall not be amended except by two-thirds majority of a quorate (<a href="https://example.com/https://example.co
- 6. A printed copy of these Standing Orders and their Appendices shall be kept by the Proper Officer, and shall be available for inspection by any member of the Public and made available on the Council website. An electronic or printed copy of the Standing Orders shall be given to each member of the Council by the Clerk as soon as possible following the member's Declaration of Acceptance of Office, and a printed or electronic copy, as requested, of the Standing Orders and their Appendices be given to all Members by the Clerk on request.

Section B - Members of the Council and Code of Conduct

Meetings

The Council has adopted as an Appendix to these Standing Orders, a Code
of Conduct that complies with current legislation, and which will apply to
councillors and members of the public co-opted to serve on Committees and
sub Committees of the Council in respect of the entire meeting.
(Currently 2012 Cornwall Code of Conduct for City, Community, Parish and
Town Councils)

All interests arising from the Code of Conduct adopted by the Council, will be recorded in the minutes giving the existence and nature of the interest.

- 2. Members must have particular regard to their obligation to record and withdraw from certain matters in which they have an interest as defined by the Code of Conduct or by relevant legislation.
- 3. The Council shall maintain for public inspection, a Register of Members' interests that is compliant with the Code of Conduct and with relevant legislation.
- 4. Vacancies in the Membership of the Council shall be filled according to law. A process for the co-option of a new member, where required, shall be contained with the Appendices to these Standing Orders.

Rules of Debate

- A councillor or member of the public co-opted to serve on Council committees and sub committees who has a Non- Registerable Interest defined under 3.5A of the Council's Code of Conduct, may by invitation of the Chairman, remain in the room to address the Council to provide any information as they reasonably consider might inform the debate before leaving the room.
- 2. The period of time for addressing the Council shall not exceed 3 minutes and will be at the discretion of the Chairman.

Members and the Code of Conduct

- All councillors and members of the public co-opted to serve on Council committees and sub committees shall observe the Code of Conduct adopted by the Council.
- 2. All councillors and members of the public co-opted to serve on Council committees and sub committees shall maintain a Register of Disclosable

Pecuniary Interests, and must update their register by notifying the Clerk and Monitoring Officer of any changes within 28 days.

- 3. All councillors shall undertake training in the code of conduct within 6 months of the delivery of their declaration of acceptance of office.
- 4. Councillors and members of the public co-opted to serve on Council committees and sub committees who have registered a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in relation to any item of business being transacted at a meeting, shall leave the room whenever the item is being discussed.
- 5. Councillors and members of the public co-opted to serve on Council committees and sub committees who have declared a Non Registerable Interest, in relation to any item of business being transacted at a meeting, shall leave the room whenever the item is being discussed.
- 6. Members must record in a Register of Interests maintained by the Proper Officer any gifts or hospitality that you are offered or receive in connection with your official duties as a member and the source of the gift or hospitality worth £25 or over.
- 7. A Member of the Council may for the purposes of his duty as a member but not otherwise, inspect any document which has been considered by a Committee or by the Council, and if copies are available, shall on request be supplied for the like purposes with a copy of such a document. Provided that a member shall not knowingly inspect and shall not call for a copy of any document relating to a matter in which he or she has an interest contrary to the Code of Conduct or to Relevant Legislation and shall not preclude the Clerk to the Council or the Solicitor to the Council from declining to allow inspection of any document which is, or in the event of legal proceedings would be protected by privilege arising from the relationship of solicitor and client. All Minutes kept for any Committee shall be open for the inspection of any member of the Council during office hours.
- 8. A member of the Council shall not issue any order respecting any works which are being carried out by or on behalf of the Council.

Allegations of breaches of the Code of Conduct

1. Notification of any complaint shall remain confidential to the Proper Officer of the Council until such time as the matter has been concluded.

- 2. Where the notification relates to a complaint made by the Proper Officer, the Proper Officer shall notify the Chairman of that fact, who, upon receipt of such notification, shall nominate a person to assume the duties of the Proper Officer, who shall continue to act in respect of that matter as such until the complaint is resolved.
- 3. Where a notification relates to a complaint made by an employee (not being the Proper Officer) the Proper Officer shall ensure that the employee in question does not deal with any aspect of the complaint
- 4. References to a notification shall be taken to refer to a communication of any kind which relates to a breach or an alleged breach of the code of conduct by a councillor.

Dispensations

- A councillor or a member of the public co-opted to serve on a Committee or sub-committees who has declared a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest or Non Registerable Interest in any item of business being transacted at a meeting may submit a written request for a dispensation before the start of the meeting.
- 2. Consideration of written requests for dispensations shall be a standing item on all Agendas of meetings of the Council, its committees and sub committees.
- The Council will not award dispensations to councillors or co-opted members of Committees attending any informal meeting of the Council, its committees and sub-committees where no record of the proceedings is made.
- 4. This standing order shall apply to all meetings of the Council, its committees and sub-committees.

Section C - Proper Officer

1. The Clerk to the Council shall be the Proper Officer of the Council, and Members of the Council must have proper regard to all advice or directives issued within that capacity.

2. The Council's Proper Officer shall do the following:

- a. Maintain copies of these Standing Orders and their Appendices as required, and for ensuring the availability as required of all documents identified within them and within Local Government Act, 1972 Schedule 12, Part IV.
- Prepare and make available all agendas and minutes in line with the provisions of these Standing Orders.
- c. Give all councillors proper note of the time, date, venue and the agenda of a meeting of the Council and a meeting of a committee and subcommittee at least 3 clear days before the meeting.
- d. Give public notice of the time, date, venue and agenda at least 3 clear days before a meeting of the Council or a meeting of a committee or a sub-committee via notice boards and the web.
- e. Call an extraordinary full Council meeting of the Council if required under SO D6b below.
- f. Receive and retain copies of byelaws made by other local authorities.
- g. Receive and retain declarations of acceptance of office from councillors.
- h. Retain a copy of every councillor's register of interests and any changes to it and keep copies of the same available for inspection by the public.
- i. Keep proper records required before and after meetings;
- j. Process all requests made under the Freedom of Information Act 2000 and Data Protection Act 1998, in accordance with and subject to the Council's procedures relating to the same.
- k. Receive and send general correspondence and notices on behalf of the Council except where there is a resolution to the contrary.
- I. Manage the organisation, storage of and access to information held by the Council in paper and electronic print and voice form.
- m. Arrange for legal deeds to be sealed using the Council's common seal and witnessed as required
- n. Arrange for the prompt authorisation, approval, and instruction regarding any payments to be made by the Council in accordance with the Council's financial regulations.
- o. Record every planning application notified to the Council and the

Council's response to the local planning authority

- Retain custody of the seal of the Council (if any) which shall not be used without a resolution to that effect
- q. Action or undertake activity or responsibilities instructed by resolution or contained in Standing Orders.
- r. Keep records of information not forming part of the Standing Orders but necessary to the work of the Council which shall be available for inspection by members for example Staffing Structure, List of Working Groups and Outside Bodies, List of Property etc.
- s. Undertake such other duties as shall be defined in the job description, or be necessary from time to time commensurate with the responsibilities of the post
- 3. Where any document will be a necessary step in legal proceedings on behalf of the Council it shall, unless any enactment otherwise requires or authorises, or the Council shall have given the necessary authority to some other person for the purpose of such proceedings, be signed by the Clerk to the Council.

Section D – Full Council Meetings

- 1. The following shall all be considered as Full Council Meetings:
 - a. Annual Town Council Meeting
 - b. Ordinary Full Council Meetings
 - c. Interim Full Council Meetings
 - d. Full Town Council (Priority Setting) Meeting
 - e. Extraordinary Full Council Meetings
 - f. Annual Town Meeting with Parishioners
 - g. Mayor Choosing
- 2. The Annual Town Council Meeting shall be held within May on the first Thursday of May, excepting in an election year when it shall be held on the second Thursday of May, or the First Thursday after the Elections if the date is varied and must in any case take place within 14 days thereafter of Councillors taking office.

The first business conducted at the annual meeting of the council shall be the election of the Chairman and Vice-Chairman (if any) of the Council.

The Chairman of the Council, unless he has resigned or becomes disqualified, shall continue in office and preside at the annual meeting until his successor is elected at the next annual meeting of the council.

The Vice-Chairman of the Council, if any, unless he resigns or becomes disqualified, shall hold office until immediately after the election of the Chairman of the Council at the next annual meeting of the council.

In an election year, if the current Chairman of the Council has not been reelected as a member of the council, he shall preside at the meeting until a successor Chairman of the Council has been elected. The current Chairman of the Council shall not have an original vote in respect of the election of the new Chairman of the Council but must give a casting vote in the case of an equality of votes.

In an election year, if the current Chairman of the Council has been reelected as a member of the council, he shall preside at the meeting until a new Chairman of the Council has been elected. He may exercise an original vote in respect of the election of the new Chairman of the Council and must give a casting vote in the case of an equality of votes.

 Ordinary Full Council meetings shall be held on the first Thursday of each Month excepting May, unless otherwise determined by resolution at Mayor Choosing.

In addition to the annual meeting of the council, at least three other ordinary meetings shall be held in each year on such dates and times as the council directs.

- 4. Interim Full Council meetings shall be held on the third Tuesday of each Month excepting May, unless otherwise determined by resolution at Mayor Choosing, or unless cancelled by agreement of the Town Clerk and Town Mayor due to lack of business.
- 5. The Full Town Council (Priority Setting) Meeting shall be held on a date to be agreed by the Full Town Council.

6. The Chairman of the Council may convene an extraordinary meeting of the council at any time.

Extraordinary Full Council meetings shall be held as requisitioned either by resolution of the Full Council, or by a requisition of at least one-third of the Members of the Town Council, with the business transacted to be specified in the requisition.

- a. If the Chairman of the Council does not or refuses to call an extraordinary meeting of the council within seven days of having been requested in writing to do so by two councillors, any two councillors may convene an extraordinary meeting of the council. The public notice giving the time, place and agenda for such a meeting must be signed by the two councillors.
- b. In the event of a vacancy of a Chairman of the Council the Clerk shall automatically requisition an Extraordinary Full Council meeting for the

purposes of electing a replacement, and shall require no other authority

to do so.

- 7. The Annual Town Meeting with Parishioners shall be held on the first Thursday in March, prior to the Ordinary Full Town Council Meeting, or in the event of any unforeseen circumstance, on a convenient day and time between 1st March and 1st June inclusive decided by a resolution of the Council.
- 8. The Mayor and Deputy Mayor will be elected as the first item of business at the Annual Town Council Meeting held in May.
- 9. Mayor Choosing will be held in May at a date set by Full Council following the Annual Town Council Meeting.
- 10. No meeting of Full Council, or of any Committee or Sub Committee under Section E below, shall be held unless three clear days' notice have been given to all members of the date, time, location and agenda of the meeting, these days not to include the day the notice was issued, the day of the meeting, Sundays, Bank Holidays or a day appointed for public thanksgiving or mourning.

The minimum three clear days' public notice for a meeting does not include the day on which the notice was issued or the day of the meeting unless the meeting is convened at shorter notice.

- 11. Meetings shall not take place in premises which at the time of the meeting are
 - used for the supply of alcohol, unless no other premises are available free of

charge or at a reasonable cost.

Section E - Committees, Sub Committees and Working Groups

- The Committees of the Council shall include
 - a. Policy and Resources (P&R)
 - b. Services Committee
 - c. Staffing Committee
 - d. Burial Board/Burial Authority
- 2. Each committee shall have between eight and twelve members, including exofficio members, except that the Staffing Committee and Burial Board shall have six members including ex-officio members.
- 3. The Burial Board may have a non-councillor as Co-Chairman representing St Stephens whilst it is in ecclesiastical ownership. However this position does not confer any powers of expenditure on behalf of Saltash Town Council.
 - Non-councillors may be invited to attend and speak but only councillors shall have a vote.
- 4. Committees shall meet on dates to be set by the Town Council and each Committee shall at its first meeting after the Annual Council Meeting appoint its own Chairman for the ensuing year.
- 5. The Full Council and Committees under E1 may appoint Sub Committees and Working Groups which shall meet as required.

6. Committees and Sub Committees may, under these Standing Orders and appendices or any decision of the Town Council, be given direct control of Policy or Expenditure over agreed areas and to an agreed limit. They are bound in full by the provisions of these Standing Orders and must not contain as voting members any non-members of the Town Council.

7. Council and Committee Procurement

The European Union Procurement Directive shall apply and the terms of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 and the Utilities Contracts Regulations 2015 including thresholds shall be followed:

- Up to £25,000 Requirements in the councils standing orders and financial standing orders.
- Over £25,000 Use of the Contract Finder website and other light touch rules in the Public Contracts Regulations 2015.
- Over £164,176 or £4,104,394 Other detailed and complex requirements in the 2015 Regulations.
- 8. Working Groups may not be given direct control of Policy or Expenditure, although their Chair may be a consultee to a delegated authority given to an Officer. They may include voting members not appointed by the Town Council, but must be chaired by a Member of the Town Council.
- 9. The Minutes of all Committees shall be considered by Full Council, and the Minutes of Sub Committees by the relevant Committee. Working Groups may keep notes but shall not be required to keep Minutes except by resolution of the full Council.
- 10. Membership of Committees for the ensuing year shall be determined by the Annual Full Council.
- 11. Membership of Sub Committees and of Working Groups shall be determined by the Full Council or Committee that appointed the Sub Committee or Working Group as appropriate, save that spaces on Working Groups from other bodies shall only be allocated by the Council or Committee and not filled by them.
- 12. The Membership of Committees and Sub Committees, and Membership of Working Groups appointed by and from the Town Councillors, shall not extend past the next Annual Meeting of the Council,

13. Except where otherwise provided by statute or a scheme made under statutory authority, the Mayor and Deputy Mayor shall be ex-officio a voting member of every Committee or Sub Committee appointed by the Council.

- 14. The Chairman of a Committee, or the Town Mayor, may summon a special meeting of a Committee or Sub Committee at any time. A special meeting shall also be summoned on the requisition in writing of a quarter of the members of the Committee or Sub Committee. The requisition shall set out the business to be considered at the special meeting and shall be considered valid when handed to the Chairman or Clerk. The summons to the meeting shall be sent by the Clerk to the Council. Any summons under this provision must comply with the minimum notice requirements.
- 15. Members of the Town Council and the Proper Officer shall have the right to attend all Committees, Sub Committees and Working Groups of the Town Council and to speak at the invitation of the Chairman.

Section F – Business of Meetings

- Except where the Council or Committee, on the grounds of urgency or expediency (for example to cover variations to suit members, or guests, where necessary) vary the order of business in accordance with Standing Orders, the order of business at every meeting of the Council or Committee shall be as outlined below.
- 2. Except where agreed in advance by the Full Council or Committee as appropriate, or when necessitated by the holding of one meeting after another, meetings of the Council and its Committees shall commence at 7pm.
- 3. At Ordinary Full Council Meetings:
 - a. Health and safety announcements.
 - b. To choose a person to preside if the Mayor and Deputy Mayor be absent.
 - c. Prayers, where permitted by Motion of the Council and desired by the Mayor/Chairman.
 - d. Apologies for absence.
 - e. To receive Declarations of Interests as required by the Code of Conduct or by relevant legislation.
 - f. To hear speakers with the permission of the Council.

- g. To read and approve as a correct record the Minutes of Full Council Meetings not yet approved but ready for approval. If a copy has been circulated to each Member of the Council not later than the date of issue of the summons to attend the Meeting, the minutes will be taken as read.
- h. To consider Written Questions from Members of the Public.
- i. To receive reports from the Mayor, Police, Cornwall Council, Saltash Gateway CIC (PL12 Community Enterprises) and other bodies or Members at the discretion of the Mayor/Chairman.
- j. To consider Matters Arising from the Minutes not otherwise on the agenda.
- k. To consider Financial Matters.
- I. To consider Correspondence.
- m. To read and approve as a correct record the Minutes of Committees of the Council, and of Sub Committees reporting to Full Council, and to consider any Recommendations and Matters Arising from them. If a copy has been circulated to each Member of the Council not later than the date of issue of the summons to attend the Meeting, the minutes will be taken as read.
- n. To consider other matters placed on the agenda by the Mayor/Chairman.
- o. To consider other matters submitted by motion
- p. To consider Planning Matters.
- g. To consider matters of public engagement and communication.
- r. To consider urgent non-financial matters at the discretion of the Mayor/Chairman
- s. To note the Dates of the Next Meetings.
- t. To move to order that the Common Seal of the Council be affixed to all deeds and documents necessary to give effect to the foregoing acts and proceedings.
- 4. At the Annual Town Council Meeting:

Following the election of the Chairman of the Council and Vice-Chairman (if any) of the Council at the annual meeting of the council, the business of the annual meeting shall include:

In an election year, delivery by the Chairman of the Council and councillors of their acceptance of office forms unless the council resolves for this to be done at a later date. In a year which is not an election year, delivery by the Chairman of the Council of his acceptance of office form unless the council resolves for this to be done at a later date:

In addition to all items listed under (a) to (t) above, a further item shall be inserted after (I) and before (m)

Matters to be considered by Annual Council:

- a. Appointments to Committees
- b. Appointments to Outside Bodies
- c. To consider approval of annual accounts
- d. To review Standing Orders
- e. To consider re-approval of schemes of delegation
- f. To consider approval of the Annual Health and Safety Policy
- 5. At Interim Full Council Meetings:
 - a. Health and safety announcements
 - b. To choose a person to preside if the Mayor and Deputy Mayor be absent.
 - c. Apologies for absence
 - d. To receive Declarations of Interests as required by the Code of Conduct or by relevant legislation
 - e. To consider Planning Matters.
 - f. To consider other matters placed on the agenda by the Mayor/Chairman
 - g. To consider urgent non-financial matters at the discretion of the Mayor/Chairman

- h. To note the Dates of the Next Meetings
- i. To move to order that the Common Seal of the Council be affixed to all deeds and documents necessary to give effect to the foregoing acts and proceedings.
- 6. At the Full Town Council (Priority Setting) Meeting:
 - a. Health and safety announcements.
 - b. To choose a person to preside if the Mayor and Deputy Mayor be absent.
 - c. Apologies for absence.
 - d. To receive Declarations of Interests as required by the Code of Conduct or by relevant legislation.
 - e. To consider the Town Council's Priorities for the ensuing year.
 - f. To consider urgent non-financial matters at the discretion of the Mayor/Chairman.
 - g. To note the Dates of the Next Meetings.
 - h. To move to order that the Common Seal of the Council be affixed to all deeds and documents necessary to give effect to the foregoing acts and proceedings.
- 7. At Extraordinary Full Council Meetings:
 - a. Health and safety announcements.
 - b. To choose a person to preside if the Mayor and Deputy Mayor be absent.
 - c. Apologies for absence.
 - d. To receive declarations of interests as required by the Code of Conduct or by relevant legislation.
 - e. To consider the matters specified when the meeting was called.
 - f. To note the Dates of the Next Meetings.

g. To move to order that the Common Seal of the Council be affixed to all deeds and documents necessary to give effect to the foregoing acts and proceedings.

- 8. At the Annual Town Meeting with Parishioners:
 - a. Health and safety announcements.
 - b. To choose a person to preside if the Mayor and Deputy Mayor be absent.
 - c. Prayers, where permitted by Motion of the Council and desired by the Mayor/Chairman.
 - d. Apologies for absence.
 - e. To read and approve as a correct record the Minutes of the last Annual Town Meeting with Parishioners. If a copy has been circulated to each Member of the Council, and displayed for Parishioners, not later than the date of issue of the summons to attend the Meeting, the minutes will be taken as read.
 - f. To receive Annual Reports from the Mayor, Police, Cornwall Council, Saltash Gateway CIC, Town Council Committees, Members who represent the Council on outside bodies, and other bodies or Members at the discretion of the Mayor/Chairman.
 - g. To consider Questions from Members of the Public.
 - h. To note the Dates of the Next Annual Town Meeting with Parishioners.
 - To move to order that the Common Seal of the Council be affixed to all deeds and documents necessary to give effect to the foregoing acts and proceedings.
- 9. At Mayor Choosing:
 - a. The National Anthem.
 - b. Welcome by the Mayor and health and safety announcements.
 - c. To choose a person to preside if the Mayor and Deputy Mayor be absent.
 - d. Prayers, where permitted by Motion of the Council and desired by the Mayor/Chairman.
 - e. Apologies for absence.

- f. To elect a Town Mayor for the ensuing year.
- g. To receive the declaration of office from the new Mayor.
- h. To elect a Deputy Town Mayor for the ensuing year.
- i. To note appointments by the Mayor as Mayoress, Mayor's Chaplain, Mayor's Cadet etc.
- j. To move the best thanks of the Council to the outgoing Mayor.
- k. To approve the dates for meetings of the Council for the ensuing year.
- To move to order that the Common Seal of the Council be affixed to all deeds and documents necessary to give effect to the foregoing acts and proceedings.

Additional items in keeping with the traditions of the Council and of Mayor Choosing may be added by agreement of the Mayor and Town Clerk, with consideration to the wishes of the Mayor-Elect.

10. At Committee Meetings:

- a. Health and safety announcements.
- b. To choose a person to preside if the Chairman and Vice Chairman be absent.
- c. Apologies for absence.
- d. To receive Declarations of Interests as required by the Code of Conduct or by relevant legislation.
- e. To hear speakers with the permission of the Committee.
- f. To consider Written Questions from Members of the Public.
- g. To receive the Minutes of Sub Committees and consider any recommendations or matters arising.
- h. To receive reports from Working Groups and consider any recommendations or matters arising.
- i. To consider Financial Matters.

- j. To consider other matters placed on the agenda by the Chairman.
- k. To consider other matters submitted by motion.
- I. To consider urgent non-financial matters at the discretion of the Chairman.
- m. To note the Dates of the Next Meetings.
- 11. Further to the above at the Annual Town Council Meeting in an election year and at a Full Town Council Meeting not less than two months prior to Mayor Choosing in a non-election year, there shall be an additional item between (p) and (q) to consider nominations for Mayor-Elect and for Deputy Mayor-Elect for the ensuing year.
- 12. With respect to items of business detailed above:
 - a. Any items on the agenda must be relevant to some question over which the Council has power, or which affects the Town.
 - b. Matters submitted by motion must be signed by the Members proposing and seconding the motion and delivered, at least seven days before the appropriate meeting of the Council, to the office of the Clerk to the Council by whom it shall be dated.
 - c. No items shall be considered that proposes to rescind any resolution passed within the preceding six months and no motion or amendment to the same effect as one which has been negatived within the preceding six months, unless submitted by motion bearing the names of at least four members of the Council.
 - d. Items that may require expenditure may only be considered if a maximum expenditure is identified and listed on the agenda.
 - e. Supporting papers must be provided with all matters as appropriate. These must be given to the Clerk at least 72 hours prior to the meeting and submitted by him to members at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.
 - f. The Mayor or Chairman may require that any reports be submitted in writing and circulated prior to the meeting.

Section G – Conduct of Meetings

1. Save where provided by statute the quorum of a meeting of the Council and of a Sub Committee or Committee shall be one third of the total number of members of the Council, Committee or Sub Committee, except that in no

case shall the quorum be less than three members. Meetings may consider matters without quorum, but not make resolutions, where no member present objects.

- 2. The public shall be admitted to all meetings of the Council, its Committees and Sub Committees so far as there is accommodation, unless their presence is prejudicial to the public interest by reason of the confidential nature of the business to be transacted or for other special reasons. The public's exclusion from part or all of a meeting shall be by a resolution which shall specify reasons for the exclusion.
- 3. If the Mayor or Chairman is absent the meeting shall be chaired by the Deputy Mayor or Vice Chairman or, in their absence, by a Member chosen by the Meeting. The person in the Chair shall take on the full powers of the Mayor/Chairman for the purposes of that meeting.

Subject to standing orders which indicate otherwise, anything authorised or required to be done by, to or before the Chairman of the Council may in his absence be done by, to or before the Vice-Chairman of the Council (if any).

- 4. Photographing, recording, broadcasting or transmitting the proceedings of a meeting by any means is permitted subject to notifying the Chairman at the commencement of the meeting.
- 5. The press shall be provided reasonable facilities for the taking of their report of all or part of any meeting at which they are entitled to be present, in accordance with G2 above.
- 6. With respect to items of Business detailed in Section F above:
 - a. The Mayor/Chairman may reject any report or items not submitted in accordance with Section F, and/or may limit the time available to give any verbal report.
 - b. The Mayor/Chairman may reject any question from members of the public not submitted in writing, or submitted anonymously.
 - c. Minutes, on being read or taken as read, shall be automatically considered for approval by the Mayor/Chairman putting the question "That the Minutes of the Meeting of the Council (or Committee) held onday of........ be signed as a true record".

- d. Items not on the agenda may not be considered except as outlined herein.
- 7. The following motions may be served without notice:
 - a. Appointment of the Chairman of the meeting.
 - b. Motions relating to the accuracy of the Minutes, closure, adjournment, order of business, next business.
 - c. That the Council do resolve itself into Committee.
 - d. Appointment of Committee or Sub Committee or members thereof, so far as arising from an item mentioned in the summons to the meeting.
 - e. To refer a matter to a Committee or Sub Committee or Working Group, and to appoint any such Working Group.
 - f. Adoption of reports and recommendations of Committees or officers and of any consequent resolutions.
 - g. That leave be given to withdraw a motion.
 - h. Amendments to motions.
 - i. Authorising the sealing of documents.
 - j. Extending the time for speeches.
 - k. That an item of business specified in the summons have precedence.
 - I. Suspending Standing Orders, except where required by the law.
 - m. Motions under the appropriate legislation to exclude members of the public.
 - n. That a Member be not further heard or do leave the Meeting, in accordance with Standing Orders.
 - o. Motion to overturn the ruling of the Mayor/Chairman or to have no confidence in the Mayor/Chairman.
 - p. Giving consent of the Council where the consent of the Council is required by these Standing Orders.
 - q. Motions requiring actions of the Council in relation to an agenda item, or to an urgent non-financial matter, that do not require any expenditure beyond

petty cash (for example to send a letter, to seek a meeting, to issue a Press Release, or to issue a recommendation on a Planning Matter).

- r. To hear an urgent report from a Committee, Sub Committee, Working Group, Employee, Contractor, Professional Advisor or Consultant of the Council.
- 8. A motion or amendment shall not be discussed unless it has been proposed and seconded, and shall, if required by the Mayor/Chairman, be reduced to writing and handed to the Mayor/Chairman before it is further discussed or put to the Meeting.
- 9. A Member when seconding a motion or amendment is entitled to speak on it and may, if he then declares his intention to do so, reserve his speech until a later period of the debate.
- 10. A Member shall address the Mayor when speaking. If two or more Members attempt to speak at the same time, the Mayor shall call on one to speak.
- 11. A Member shall direct his or her speech to the question under discussion or to an explanation or to a question of order. No speech shall exceed six minutes except by the consent of the Council.
- 12. An amendment shall be either:
 - a. to leave out words
 - b. to leave out words and insert or add others
 - c. to insert or add words

but such omission or insertion of words shall not have the effect of introducing a new proposal into, or of negativing the motion before the Council.

- 13. If an amendment be rejected by the vote of the Council, other amendments may be moved on the original motion. If an amendment be carried, the motion as amended, shall take the place of the original motion and shall become the motion upon which any further amendment may be moved.
- 14. A further amendment shall not be moved until the Council shall have disposed of every amendment previously proposed and seconded.
- 15. A Member shall not be entitled to speak more than once on any motion except to move a further amendment, or on any amendment, except in the exercise of right of reply given by Standing Orders 9 and 10, or on a point

of order, or by way of personal explanation, or to move in so many words "That the question be now put". However they may be invited to speak further at the invitation of the Mayor/Chairman.

- 16. A Member may, at the conclusion of the speech of another Member move, without comment, "That the question be now put", "That the debate be adjourned", "That the Council proceed to the next business" or, "That the Council do now adjourn", on the seconding of which, the Mayor, if in his or her opinion, the question before the Meeting has been sufficiently discussed, shall, subject to the right of reply given by Standing Order G28, put the motion to the vote and if it is carried the question before the Meeting shall be put to the vote or the subject of the debate shall be deemed to be disposed of for that day, or the Meeting shall stand adjourned as the case may be.
- 17. A Member may give voice to a point of order or in personal explanation but a personal explanation shall be confined to some material part of a former speech by him or her at the same Meeting, which may have been misunderstood. A Member attempting to give such explanation shall be heard forthwith.
- 18. The ruling of the Mayor/Chairman on a point of order, or on the admissibility of a personal explanation shall not be open to discussion, except under Standing Order G19 below.
- 19. Where a Member is in disagreement with the ruling of the Mayor/Chairman he may move a motion to 'Overturn the ruling of the Chairman'. On the motion being seconded the Mayor/Chairman shall immediately cede the Chair to the Deputy Mayor/Vice Chairman or other person appointed by the meeting. The mover of the motion and the Mayor/Chairman may each speak for up to three minutes after which there shall be a vote without further discussion. The Mayor/Chairman shall then resume the Chair.
- 20. Whenever the Mayor/Chairman addresses the Council or Committee any Member then speaking, and the remainder of the Council, shall remain silent until after the Mayor has finished speaking.
- 21. A motion or amendment may be withdrawn by the proposer with the concurrence of the seconder and the consent of the Council, which shall be signified without discussion, and it shall not be competent for any Member to speak upon it after the proposer has asked for permission for its withdrawal, unless such permission shall have been refused.
- 22. When a motion is under debate, no other motion shall be moved except the following:-

- a. to amend the motion
- b. to postpone the consideration of the motion
- c. to adjourn the Meeting
- d. to adjourn the debate
- e. to proceed to the next business
- f. that the question now be put
- g. that a Member be not further heard
- h. that a Member do leave the Meeting
- j. that the subject of debate be referred to a Committee, Sub
 - Committee or Working Group, and that such a Working Group be appointed: to overturn the ruling of the Mayor/Chairman
 - ii. to have no confidence in the Mayor/Chairman
- 23. A Member of the Council may, prior to any matter being voted on, request that the full motion or amendment be read out and may, with the permission of the Mayor/Chairman, ask further questions of clarification on it.
- 24. No Member shall at a meeting persistently disregard the ruling of the Mayor/Chairman, wilfully obstruct business, or behave irregularly, offensively, improperly or in such a manner as to scandalise the Council or bring it into contempt or ridicule.
- 25. If, in the opinion of the Mayor/Chairman, a member has broken the provisions of Standing Order G24 the Mayor/Chairman shall express that opinion to the Council and thereafter any member may move that the member named be no longer heard or that the member named do leave the meeting, and the motion if seconded, shall be put forth with and without discussion.
- 26. If either of the motions mentioned in SO G25 is disobeyed, the Mayor/Chairman may suspend the meeting or take such further steps as may be reasonably necessary to enforce them.
- 27. If in the opinion of a Member the Mayor or Chairman is conducting the meeting in breach of Standing Orders, or is behaving such as to wilfully obstruct business, or behaving irregularly, offensively, improperly or in such a manner as to scandalise the Council or bring it into contempt or ridicule,

he may move to have no confidence in the Chairman. On the motion being seconded the Mayor/Chairman shall immediately cede the Chair to the Deputy Mayor/Vice Chairman or other person appointed by the meeting. The mover of the motion and the Mayor/Chairman may each speak for up to three minutes after which there shall be a vote without further discussion. If the motion is defeated the Mayor/Chairman shall resume the Chair. If the motion is carried then the temporary Chair shall continue in the Chair.

28. The proposer of a motion shall have right to reply at the close of the debate upon such motion, immediately before it is put to the vote, or before the motion "That the debate be now adjourned"; "That the Council proceed to the next business", or "That the Council do now adjourn", is put. If an amendment or a series of amendments is proposed, he or she shall be entitled to reply at the close of the debate upon the amendment then being discussed. A Member exercising a right of reply shall not introduce any new matter. After every reply to which this Standing Order refers, a decision shall be taken without further discussion. An amendment which is carried shall be put to the Meeting as the substantive proposition without discussion.

A Member of the Council, who has proposed a motion which has been referred to a Committee, shall have notice of the Meeting of the Committee at which it is proposed to consider the motion, and if he or she attends, shall have an opportunity of explaining it.

- 29. A Member may, with the consent of his seconder and of the Council, signified without discussion, alter a motion which he or she has proposed or, of which notice has been given if the alteration is one which could have been moved as an amendment thereto.
- 30. The Council may resolve itself into a Committee of the whole Council.
- 31. Any member of the public may, on being invited by the Mayor/Chairman, speak to any item on the Town Council agenda at the appropriate time, provided that only one person shall speak for and one against a particular issue. A permission to speak slip must be handed to the Town Clerk prior to the start of the Meeting. That member of the public must stand and at all times address the Chairman when speaking and no speech shall exceed three minutes except by consent of the Council.
- 32. Any member of the public asking a question or speaking to a particular item must identify themselves before they speak and should, subject to the discretion of the Mayor or Chairman, stand to speak.

33. If a member of the public interrupts the proceedings at any meeting, the Chairman may, after warning, order his or her removal from the Council Chamber or that part of the Chamber open to the public shall be cleared.

- 34. Every question shall be determined by a show of hands, and on the requisition of any member the voting on any question shall be recorded so as to show how each member present and voting gave his vote.
- 35. When there are more than two persons nominated for any position or office to be filled by the Council, and on one of the votes given there is not a clear majority in favour of one person, the name of the person having the least number of votes shall be struck off the list and a fresh vote shall be taken, and so on until a majority of votes is given in favour of one person.
- 36. Subject to a meeting being quorate, all questions at a meeting shall be decided by a majority of the councillors or councillors with voting rights present and voting.
- 37. The chairman of a meeting may give an original vote on any matter put to the vote, and in the case of an equality of votes may exercise his casting vote whether or not he gave an original vote.
- 38. Execution and sealing of legal deeds

A legal deed shall not be executed on behalf of the council unless authorised by a resolution.

The council's common seal shall alone be used for sealing a deed required by law. It shall be applied by the Proper Officer in the presence of two councillors who shall sign the deed as witnesses.

Amendments

| Date | Detail | Actioned by |
|------------|---|-------------|
| 30.08.2017 | Minor text amendments; re-order of FTC agenda items | AJT |

Agenda No. 17 (Calc Recommended Saltash TC Standing Orders)





Saltash Town Council

Konsel An Dre Essa

Standing Orders

2018

Index

| 1. General Principles | 3 | |
|---|----------------------|--|
| 2. Meetings generally | | |
| 3. Rules of debate at meetings | | |
| 4. Disorderly conduct at meetings | | |
| 5. Committees and sub committees | | |
| 6. Meetings a. Annual Meetings b. Ordinary Meetings c. Extra Ordinary meetings of the council, committees and sub committees d. Annual Town Meeting | 10 11 12 13 | |
| 7. Filming and recording meetings a. Rights to film and record meetings b. Managing disruptive behaviour whilst filming and recording | | |
| 8. Previous resolutions and the rescission of decisions | 14 | |
| 9. Voting on appointments a. Election of officers b. Representatives to outside bodies | | |
| 10. Motions for a meeting that require written notice to be given to the Proper Officers | 15 | |
| 11. Motions at a meeting that do not require written notice | | |
| 12. Handling confidential or sensitive information | | |
| 13. Minutes | 17 | |
| Code of Conduct and dispensations a. General principles b. Members and the Code of Conduct c. Allegations of breaches of the Code of Conduct | 18 18 19 | |

| | d. Dispensations | 20 |
|-----|--|----|
| 15. | Proper Officer | 20 |
| 16. | Responsible Financial Officer | 21 |
| 17. | Financial regulations | 21 |
| 18. | Handling staff matters | 22 |
| 19. | Requests for information | 22 |
| 20. | Relations with the press and media | 23 |
| 21. | Execution and sealing of legal deeds | 23 |
| 22. | Communicating with Unitary Authority councillors | 23 |
| 23. | Restrictions on councillor activities | 23 |

| | PART II |
|---|--|
| | Financial Regulations |
| | |
| | TABLE OF APPENDICES |
| 1 | Committee Terms of Reference |
| 2 | Council Policies |
| | i) Code of conduct ii) Policy for the election of Mayor and Deputy Mayor iii) Dispensations Policy iv) Complaints Procedure v) vi) vi) |

1. General Principles

- a These Standing Orders apply to the meetings and actions of Saltash Town Council, and to its Committees and Sub Committees and supersede as and when required any delegated authorities as required and as may be in place from time to time.
- b Nothing within these Standing Orders may be taken as having precedence over relevant legislation and in particular the relevant provisions of the Local Government Act, 1972 Schedule 12, Part IV.
- c All or part of a standing order, except one that incorporates mandatory statutory requirements, may be suspended by resolution in relation to the consideration of an item on the agenda for a meeting.
- d A motion to add to, vary or revoke one or more of the council's standing orders, except one that incorporates mandatory statutory requirements, shall be proposed by a special motion, the written notice by at least six (6) councillors to be given to the Proper Officer in accordance with Standing Order 10.
- e Any variation or amendment to these Standing Orders, including their Appendices, will not come into force until they have been adopted by resolution passed by a two-thirds majority of the full Council, having given one month's notice of the agreed changes.
- f A printed copy of these Standing Orders and their Appendices shall be kept by the Proper Officer, and shall be available for inspection by any member of the Public and made available on the Council website. An electronic or printed copy of the Standing Orders shall be given to each member of the Council by the Clerk as soon as possible following the member's Declaration of Acceptance of Office, and a printed or electronic copy, as requested, of the Standing Orders and their Appendices be given to all Members by the Clerk on request.
- g The Proper Officer shall provide a copy of the council's standing orders to a councillor as soon as possible after he has delivered his acceptance of office form.
- h The decision of the chairman of a meeting as to the application of standing orders at the meeting shall be final.

2. Meetings generally

- a Meetings shall not take place in premises which at the time of the meeting are used for the supply of alcohol, unless no other premises are available free of charge or at a reasonable cost.
- b The minimum three clear days for notice of a meeting does not include the day on which notice was issued, the day of the meeting, a Sunday, a day of the Christmas break, a day of the Easter break or of a bank holiday or a day appointed for public thanksgiving or mourning.
- Meetings shall be open to the public unless their presence is prejudicial to the public interest by reason of the confidential nature of the business to be transacted or for other special reasons. The public's exclusion from part or all of a meeting shall be by a resolution which shall give reasons for the public's exclusion.
- d Members of the public may make representations, answer questions and give evidence at a meeting which they are entitled to attend at that point identified on the agenda for public participation.
- e The period of time designated for public participation at a meeting in accordance with standing order 2(d) above shall not exceed 15 minutes unless directed by the chairman of the meeting.
- f Subject to standing order 2(e) above, a member of the public shall not speak for more than 3 minutes.
- g In accordance with standing order 2(d) above, a question shall not require a response at the meeting nor start a debate on the question. The chairman of the meeting may direct that a written or oral response be given.
- h A person who wishes to address the council during the public session must submit a written request to the Clerk at or before the start of the meeting.
- i A person who speaks at a meeting shall direct his comments to the chairman of the meeting.
- j Only one person is permitted to speak at a time. If more than one person wants to speak, the chairman of the meeting shall direct the order of speaking.

- k The press shall be provided with reasonable facilities for the taking of their report of all or part of a meeting at which they are entitled to be present.
- Subject to standing orders which indicate otherwise, anything authorised or required to be done by, to or before the Mayor of the Council may in his absence be done by, to or before the Deputy Mayor of the Council.
- The Mayor, if present, shall preside at a meeting. If the Mayor is absent from a meeting, the Deputy Mayor, if present, shall preside. If both the Mayor and the Deputy Mayor are absent from a meeting, a councillor as chosen by the councillors present at the meeting shall preside at the meeting.
- Subject to a meeting being quorate, all questions at a meeting shall be decided by a majority of the councillors or councillors with voting rights present and voting.
- The chairman of a meeting may give an original vote on any matter put to the vote, and in the case of an equality of votes may exercise his casting vote whether or not he gave an original vote.
- During standing orders provide otherwise, voting on a question shall be by a show of hands. At the request of a councillor, the voting on any question shall be recorded so as to show whether each councillor present and voting gave his vote for or against that question. Such a request shall be made before moving to the vote and will be taken in alphabetical order of those present at the meeting and voting.
- q The minutes of a meeting shall include an accurate record of the following:
 - i. the time and place of the meeting;
 - ii. the names of councillors present and absent;
 - iii. interests that have been declared by councillors and non-councillors with voting rights;
 - iv. whether a councillor or non-councillor with voting rights left the meeting when matters that they held interests in were being considered;
 - v. if there was a public participation session; and
 - vi. the resolutions made.
- No business may be transacted at a meeting unless at least 6 (six) members of the council are present, being one-third of the whole number of

members of the council. The Terms of Reference for each committee will define its quorum which in no case be less than three (3)

- s If a meeting is or becomes inquorate no business shall be transacted and the meeting shall be closed. The business on the agenda for the meeting shall be adjourned to another meeting.
- t A meeting shall not exceed a period of 2 ½ hours. .

3. Rules of debate at meetings

- a Motions on the agenda shall be considered in the order that they appear unless the order is changed at the discretion of the chairman of the meeting.
- b A motion (including an amendment) shall not be progressed unless it has been moved and seconded.
- c A motion on the agenda that is not moved by its proposer may be treated by the chairman of the meeting as withdrawn.
- d If a motion (including an amendment) has been seconded, it may be withdrawn by the proposer only with the consent of the seconder and the meeting.
- e An amendment is a proposal to remove or add words to a motion. It shall not negate the motion.
- If an amendment to the original motion is carried, the original motion becomes the substantive motion upon which further amendment(s) may be moved.
- g An amendment shall not be considered unless early verbal notice of it is given at the meeting and, if requested by the chairman of the meeting, is expressed in writing to the chairman.
- h A councillor may move an amendment to his own motion if agreed by the meeting. If a motion has already been seconded, the amendment shall be with the consent of the seconder and the meeting.

If there is more than one amendment to an original or substantive motion, the amendments shall be moved in the order directed by the chairman.

- j Subject to standing order 3(k) below, only one amendment shall be moved and debated at a time, the order of which shall be directed by the chairman of the meeting.
- k One or more amendments may be discussed together if the chairman of the meeting considers this expedient but each amendment shall be voted upon separately.
- A councillor may not move more than one amendment to an original or substantive motion.
- m The mover of an amendment has no right of reply at the end of debate on it.
- Note that the work of the original motion are carried, the mover of the original motion shall have a right of reply either at the end of debate of the first amendment or at the very end of debate on the final substantive motion immediately before it is put to the vote.
- o Unless permitted by the chairman of the meeting, a councillor may speak once in the debate on a motion except:
 - i. to speak on an amendment moved by another councillor:
 - ii. to move or speak on another amendment if the motion has been amended since he last spoke;
 - iii. to make a point of order;
 - iv. to give a personal explanation; or
 - v. in exercise of a right of reply.
- During the debate of a motion, a councillor may interrupt only on a point of order or a personal explanation and the councillor who was interrupted shall stop speaking. A councillor raising a point of order shall identify the standing order which he considers has been breached or specify the other irregularity in the proceedings of the meeting he is concerned by.
- q A point of order shall be decided by the chairman of the meeting and his decision shall be final.

r When a motion is under debate, no other motion shall be moved except:

- i. to amend the motion;
- ii. to proceed to the next business;
- iii. to adjourn the debate;
- iv. to put the motion to a vote;
- v. to ask a person to be no longer heard or to leave the meeting;
- vi. to refer a motion to a committee or sub-committee for consideration:
- vii. to exclude the public and press;
- viii. to adjourn the meeting; or
- ix. to suspend particular standing order(s) excepting those which reflect mandatory statutory requirements.
- s Before an original or substantive motion is put to the vote, the chairman of the meeting shall be satisfied that the motion has been sufficiently debated and that the mover of the motion under debate has exercised or waived his right of reply.
- t Excluding motions moved understanding order 3(r) above, the contributions or speeches by a councillor shall relate only to the motion under discussion and shall not exceed 3 minutes without the consent of the chairman of the meeting.

4. Disorderly conduct at meetings

- a No person shall obstruct the transaction of business at a meeting or behave offensively or improperly. If this standing order is ignored, the chairman of the meeting shall request such person(s) to moderate or improve their conduct.
- b If person(s) disregard the request of the chairman of the meeting to moderate or improve their conduct, any councillor or the chairman of the meeting may move that the person be no longer heard or excluded from the meeting. The motion, if seconded, shall be put to the vote without discussion.
- c If a resolution made under standing order 4(b) above is ignored, the chairman of the meeting may take further reasonable steps to restore order or to progress the meeting. This may include temporarily suspending or closing the meeting.

5. Committees and sub-committees

- a Unless the council determines otherwise, a committee may appoint a subcommittee whose terms of reference and members shall be determined by the committee.
- b The members of a committee may include non-councillors unless it is a committee which regulates and controls the finances of the council.
- c Unless the council determines otherwise, all the members of an advisory committee and a sub-committee of the advisory committee may be noncouncillors.
- The Council has established Terms of Reference for the governance of its committees which are attached as an appendix to these Standing Orders. They confirm the membership, voting rights and scheme of delegation and may only be varied by resolution of a meeting of full Council.

Note: To be established.

- e The council may appoint committees as may be necessary, and:
 - i. shall determine their terms of reference;
 - ii. shall determine the number and time of the ordinary meetings of a standing committee up until the date of the next annual meeting of full council;
 - iii. shall permit a committee, other than in respect of the ordinary meetings of a committee, to determine the number and time of its meetings;
 - iv. shall, subject to standing orders 5(b) and (c) above, appoint and determine the terms of office of members of such a committee;
 - v. shall permit a committee to appoint its own chairman at the first meeting of the committee;
 - vi. shall determine the place, notice requirements and quorum for a meeting of a committee and a sub-committee which shall be no less than three:
 - vii. shall determine if the public may participate at a meeting of a committee;
 - viii. shall determine if the public and press are permitted to attend the meetings of a sub-committee and also the advance public notice requirements, if any, required for the meetings of a sub-committee;
 - ix. shall determine if the public may participate at a meeting of a sub-

committee that they are permitted to attend; and

- x. may dissolve a committee.
- f Members of the Town Council shall have the right to attend all Committees, Sub Committees and Working Parties as non voting members. They may sit at the table at the discretion of the Committee and may speak at the invitation of the Chairman.
- Where the press and public are excluded from any part of a meeting of the Personnel Committee, members of the council not appointed to serve on the committee will also be excluded from that part of the meeting.

6. Meetings

The following shall be considered as full council meetings

- a. Annual Town Council meeting
- b. Ordinary meetings of the Council
- c. Extra Ordinary meetings of the Council
- d. Mayor Choosing

Annual Meetings

- i. In an election year, the annual meeting of the council shall be held on the third Thursday of May, or the first Thursday after the Elections if the date is varied and must in any case take place within 14 days following the day on which the new councillors elected take office.
- ii. In a year which is not an election year, the annual meeting of a council shall be held on the first Thursday in May at 7pm.
- iii. The first business conducted at the annual meeting of the council shall be the election of the Mayor and Deputy Mayor of the Council.
- iv. The Mayor, unless he has resigned or becomes disqualified, shall continue in office and preside at the annual meeting until his successor is elected.
- v. The Deputy Mayor, unless he resigns or becomes disqualified, shall hold office until immediately after the election of the Mayor of the

Council at the next annual meeting of the council.

- vi. In an election year, if the current Mayor of the Council has not been reelected as a member of the council, he shall preside at the meeting until a successor Mayor of the Council has been elected. The current Mayor shall not have an original vote in respect of the election of the new Mayor of the Mayor of the Council but must give a casting vote in the case of an equality of votes.
- vii. In an election year, if the current Mayor of the Council has been reelected as a member of the council, he shall preside at the meeting until a new Mayor of the Council has been elected. He may exercise an original vote in respect of the election of the new Mayor of the Council and must give a casting vote in the case of an equality of votes.
- viii. Following the election of the Mayor and Deputy Mayor of the Council at the annual meeting of the council, the business of the annual meeting shall include:
 - a) In an election year, delivery by the Mayor of the Council and councillors of their acceptance of office forms unless the council resolves for this to be done at a later date. In a year which is not an election year, delivery by the Mayor of the Council of his acceptance of office form unless the council resolves for this to be done at a later date;
 - b) Confirmation of the accuracy of the minutes of the last meeting of the council:
 - c) Receipt of the minutes of the last meeting of a committee;
 - d) Consideration of the recommendations made by a committee;
 - e) Review of delegation arrangements to committees, sub-committees, staff and other local authorities;
 - f) Review of the terms of reference for committees;
 - g) Appointment of members to existing committees;
 - h) Appointment of any new committees in accordance with standing order 5 above:
 - In an election year, to confirm that the Council has met the eligibility criteria and is able to adopt and exercise the general power of competence;

j) Determining the time and place of ordinary meetings of the full council up to and including the next annual meeting of full council.

b Ordinary Meetings

- Ordinary Full Council meetings shall be held on the first Thursday of each month excepting May, unless otherwise determined by resolution at the Annual Meeting of the Council.
- ii. In addition to the annual meeting of the council, at least three other ordinary meetings shall be held in each year on such dates and times as the council directs.
- iii. At Ordinary Full Council Meetings the order of business shall be:
 - a) Health and safety announcements.
 - b) To choose a person to preside if the Mayor and Deputy Mayor be absent.
 - c) Prayers, where permitted by Motion of the Council and desired by the Mayor/Chairman.
 - d) Apologies for absence.
 - e) To receive Declarations of Interests as required by the Code of Conduct or by relevant legislation and consider written requests for dispensations.
 - f) To hear speakers with the permission of the Council.
 - g) To read and approve as a correct record the Minutes of Full Council Meetings not yet approved but ready for approval
 - h) To consider Written Questions from Members of the Public.
 - To receive reports from the Mayor, Police, Cornwall Council, Saltash Gateway CIC and other bodies or Members at the discretion of the Mayor.
 - j) To consider Matters Arising from the Minutes not otherwise on the agenda (for report only)
 - k) To consider Financial Matters.
 - I) To consider Planning Matters.
 - m) To consider Correspondence.
 - n) To receive and note Minutes of Committees of the Council, and of Sub Committees reporting to Full Council, and consider any recommendations therein.
 - o) To consider other matters placed on the agenda

- p) To consider other matters submitted by motion
- q) To consider matters of public engagement and communication.
- r) To note the Dates of the Next Meetings.
- s) To move to order that the Common Seal of the Council be affixed to all deeds and documents necessary to give effect to the foregoing acts and proceedings.

c Extraordinary meetings of the council and committees and sub-committees

- i. The Mayor of the Council may convene an extraordinary meeting of the council at any time.
- ii. If the Mayor of the Council does not or refuses to call an extraordinary meeting of the council within seven days of having been requested in writing to do so by two councillors, any two councillors may convene an extraordinary meeting of the council. The public notice giving the time, place and agenda for such a meeting must be signed by the two councillors.
- iii. The Chairman of a committee or a sub-committee may convene an extraordinary meeting of the committee or the sub-committee at any time.
- iv. If the Chairman of a committee or a sub-committee does not or refuses to call an extraordinary meeting within seven days of having been requested by to do so by two members of the committee or the sub-committee, any two members of the committee or the sub-committee may convene an extraordinary meeting of a committee or a sub-committee.

v. At Extra Ordinary Full Council Meetings the order of business shall be:

- a) Health and safety announcements.
- b) To choose a person to preside if the Mayor and Deputy Mayor are absent.
- c) Apologies for absence.
- d) To receive Declarations of Interests as required by the Code of Conduct or by relevant legislation and consider written requests for dispensations.
- e) To consider the matters specified when the meeting was called.
- f) To note the Dates of the next meetings

g) To move to order that the common Seal of the council be affixed to all deeds and documents necessary to give effect to the foregoing acts and proceedings.

d Annual Town Meeting

- i. The Annual Town Meeting shall be held between March 1st and June 1st, at a time fixed by resolution of the full Council.
- ii. At the Annual Town Meeting the order of business shall be:
 - a) Health and safety announcements.
 - b) To choose a person to preside if the Mayor and Deputy Mayor be absent.
 - c) Prayers, where permitted by Motion of the Meeting and desired by the Mayor/Chairman.
 - d) Apologies for absence.
 - e) To adopt the minutes of the last Annual Town Meeting of electors.
 - f) To receive annual reports from the Mayor, Saltash Town Council, Cornwall Council, Police, Saltash Gateway, CIC and representatives of outside partners within the area of Saltash.
 - g) To consider questions from members of the public
 - h) To note the date of the next Annual Town Meeting with electors.

7. Filming and recording meetings

a Filming and Recording council meetings

- i. Whilst a meeting of the Council, its committees or sub committees is open to the public, any person, if present, may:
 - a. film, photograph or make an audio recording of a meeting;
 - b. use any other means for enabling persons not present to see or hear proceedings at a meeting as it takes place or later;
 - c. report or comment on the proceedings in writing during or after a meeting or orally report or comment after the meeting.

ii. Oral reporting, commentary or broadcasting is not permitted during any part of a meeting of the council, its committees and sub committees.

iii. An individual must be present and able to use their equipment in order to film, photograph or audio record a meeting. There will be no opportunity to report on any part of the meeting where the council has resolved to exclude the press and public.

b Disruptive behaviour whilst filming and recording

- i. No filming, photographing or audio recording of a meeting should be carried out in such a way as to disrupt the proceedings of the meeting.
- ii. If person(s) disregard the request of the chairman of the meeting to moderate or improve their behaviour whilst filming or recording, any councillor or the chairman of the meeting may move that the person be instructed to cease filming, photographing or audio recording. The motion, if seconded, shall be put to the vote without discussion.
- iii. If a resolution under standing order 7 b above is ignored, the chairman of the meeting may take further reasonable steps to restore order or to progress the meeting. This may include temporarily suspending or closing the meeting.
- iv. Members of the Council recording meetings are reminded of their obligations under the Council's Code of Conduct in respect of confidential matters.

8. Previous resolutions and Rescission of minutes

- a A resolution shall not be reversed within six months except either by a special motion, which requires written notice by at least six (6) councillors to be given to the Proper Officer in accordance with standing order 10 below, or by a motion moved in pursuance of the recommendation of a committee or a sub-committee.
- b The Mayor or Chairman of the relevant committee may call an extra ordinary meeting to consider a written notice to rescind a decision of that meeting when in receipt of a notice under standing order 10.
- c When a motion moved pursuant to Standing Order 8 (a) above has been

disposed of, no similar motion may be moved within a further six months.

Voting on appointments 9.

Election of Officers а

- i. Where two or more persons have been nominated for a position to be filled as an office of the council, election will take place by recorded ballot.
- ii. Where more than two persons have been nominated for a position to be filled by the council and none of those persons has received an absolute majority of votes in their favour, the name of the person having the least number of votes shall be struck off the list and a fresh vote taken. This process shall continue until a majority of votes is given in favour of one person.
- iii. A tie in votes may be settled by the casting vote of the Chairman of the meeting.

Representatives to outside bodies

- i. Where two or more persons have been nominated to serve as a representative to an outside body, election will take place by a show of hands, unless two members of the council request a recorded vote.
- ii. Where more than two persons have been nominated for a position to be filled by the council and none of those persons has received an absolute majority of votes in their favour, the name of the person having the least number of votes shall be struck off the list and a fresh vote taken. This process shall continue until a majority of votes is given in favour of one person.
- iii. A tie in votes may be settled by the casting vote of the Chairman of the meeting.

10. Motions for a meeting that require written notice to be given to the Proper Officer

- A motion shall relate to the responsibilities of the meeting to which it is tabled and in any event shall relate to the performance of the council's statutory functions, powers and obligations or an issue which specifically affects the council's area or its residents.
- b A written notice of motion received in accordance with these Standing Orders may be referred to any meeting of the Council or its committees or sub committees. The final decision as to where the motion will be considered will be made by the Proper Officer.
- No motion may be moved at a meeting unless it is on the agenda and the mover has given written notice of its wording to the Proper Officer at least ten (10) clear days before the meeting. Clear days do not include the day of the notice or the day of the meeting.
- d The Proper Officer may, before including a motion on the agenda received in accordance with Standing Order 10 (b) above, correct obvious grammatical or typographical errors in the wording of the motion.
- e If the Proper Officer considers the wording of a motion received in accordance with Standing Order 10 (b) above is not clear in meaning, the motion shall be rejected until the mover of the motion resubmits it in writing to the Proper Officer so that it can be understood at least eight (8) clear days before the meeting.
- If the wording or subject of a proposed motion is considered improper, the Proper Officer shall consult with the Chairman of the forthcoming meeting or, as the case may be, the relevant Committee meeting or the councillors who have convened the meeting, to consider whether the motion shall be included in the agenda or rejected.
- g A written notice of motion shall not relate to any matter covered by the Council's complaints, grievance and disciplinary policies.
- h Subject to Standing Order 10 (e) above, the decision of the Proper Officer as to whether or not to include the motion on the agenda shall be final.

11. Motions at a meeting that do not require written notice

- a The following motions may be moved at a meeting without written notice to the Proper Officer;
 - i. to correct an inaccuracy in the draft minutes of a meeting;
 - ii. to move to a vote:
 - iii. to defer consideration of a motion:
 - iv. to refer a motion to a particular committee or sub-committee;
 - v. to appoint a person to preside at a meeting;
 - vi. to change the order of business on the agenda;
 - vii. to proceed to the next business on the agenda;
 - viii. to require a written report;
 - ix. to appoint a committee or sub-committee and their members;
 - x. to extend the time limits for speaking;
 - xi. to exclude the press and public from a meeting in respect of confidential or sensitive information which is prejudicial to the public interest;
 - xii. to not hear further from a councillor or a member of the public;
 - xiii. to exclude a councillor or member of the public for disorderly conduct;
 - xiv. to temporarily suspend the meeting;
 - xv. to suspend a particular standing order (unless it reflects mandatory statutory requirements);
 - xvi. to adjourn the meeting; or
 - xvii. to close a meeting.

12. Handling confidential or sensitive information

- a The agenda, papers that support the agenda and the minutes of a meeting shall not disclose or otherwise undermine confidential or sensitive information which for special reasons would not be in the public interest.
- b Councillors and staff shall not disclose confidential or sensitive information which for special reasons would not be in the public interest.
- Any member exercising their right to film and/or record any part of the meeting where the press and public have been excluded shall not disclose or otherwise undermine the confidentiality of any part of any session which they record or film.

13. Minutes

- a The Minutes of all Committees shall be reported to Full Council to consider any Recommendations and matters arising from them. If a copy has been circulated to each member of the Council not later than the date of issue of the summons to attend the Meeting, the minutes will be taken as read.
- b Minutes of Sub Committees will be received and considered by the relevant Committee. Working Groups may keep notes but shall not be required to keep Minutes except by resolution of the full Council.
- There shall be no discussion about the draft minutes of a preceding meeting except in relation to their accuracy. A motion to correct an inaccuracy in the draft minutes shall be moved in accordance with standing order 11 (a) i above.
- d The accuracy of draft minutes, including any amendment(s) made to them, shall be confirmed by resolution and shall be signed by the Chairman of the meeting and stand as an accurate record of the meeting to which the minutes relate.
- e If the Chairman of the meeting does not consider the minutes to be an accurate record of the meeting to which they relate, he shall sign the minutes and include a paragraph in the following terms or to the same effect:
 - "The Chairman of this meeting does not believe that the minutes of the meeting of the () held on [date] in respect of () were a correct record but his view was not upheld by the meeting and the minutes are confirmed as an accurate record of the proceedings."
- f Upon a resolution which confirms the accuracy of the minutes of a meeting, the draft minutes or recordings of the meeting for which approved minutes exist shall be destroyed.

14. Code of conduct and dispensations

General

a The Council has adopted a Code of Conduct which complies with current legislation, and which will apply to councillors and members of the public co-opted to serve on Committees and sub Committees of the Council in respect of the entire meeting.

(Currently 2012 Cornwall Code of Conduct for City, Community, Parish and Town Councils)

All interests arising from the Code of Conduct adopted by the Council will be recorded in the minutes giving the existence and nature of the interest.

- b Members must have particular regard to their obligation to record and leave the room for certain matters in which they have an interest as defined by the Code of Conduct or by relevant legislation.
- c The Council shall maintain for public inspection, a Register of Members' interests that is compliant with the Code of Conduct and with relevant legislation.

Members and the Code of Conduct

- d All councillors and members of the public co-opted to serve on Council committees and sub committees shall observe the Code of Conduct adopted by the Council.
- e All councillors and members of the public co-opted to serve on Council committees and sub committees shall maintain a Register of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, and must update their register by notifying the Monitoring Officer and the Clerk of any changes within 28 days.
- f All councillors shall undertake training in the code of conduct within 6 months of the delivery of their declaration of acceptance of office.
- Unless granted a dispensation, a councillor or non-councillor with voting rights who has registered a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in relation to any item of business being transacted at a meeting, shall leave the room whenever the item is being discussed, including any part of the meeting where the public are entitled to speak.
- h Unless granted a dispensation, a councillor or non-councillor with voting rights who has registered a non-registerable interest in relation to any item of business being transacted at a meeting, shall leave the room whenever the item is being

discussed, including any part of the meeting where the public are entitled to speak.

- Where a non-registerable interest arises from membership of an outside body as defined in 3.5a of the Council's code of conduct, a councillor remain in the room to address the meeting, provide a short statement and answer questions for no more than three (3) minutes before leaving the room at the request of the Chairman.
- j Members must record in a Register of Interests maintained by the Proper Officer any gifts or hospitality that you are offered or receive in connection with your official duties as a member and the source of the gift or hospitality worth £25 or over.
- A Member of the Council may, for the purposes of his duty as a member but not otherwise, inspect any document which has been considered by a Committee or by the Council. The Proper Officer or Solicitor to the Council may decline to allow inspection of any document which is protected by other legislation or in the event of legal proceedings would be protected by privilege arising from the relationship of solicitor and client. All Minutes kept for any Committee shall be open for the inspection of any member of the Council during office hours.

Allegations of breaches of the Code of Conduct

- Notification of any complaint shall remain confidential to the Proper Officer of the Council until such time as the matter has been concluded.
- m Where the notification relates to a complaint made by the Proper Officer, the Proper Officer shall notify the Mayor of that fact, who, upon receipt of such notification, shall nominate a person to assume the duties of the Proper Officer set out in this standing order, who shall continue to act in respect of that matter as such until the complaint is resolved.
- n Where a notification relates to a complaint made by an employee (not being the Proper Officer) the Proper Officer shall ensure that the employee in question does not deal with any aspect of the complaint
- o The council may:
 - i. provide information or evidence where such disclosure is necessary to progress an investigation of the complaint or is required by law;
 - ii. seek information relevant to the complaint from the person or body with statutory responsibility for investigation of the matter;

P References to a notification shall be taken to refer to a communication of any kind which relates to a breach or an alleged breach of the code of conduct by a councillor.

Dispensations

- The Council has adopted a policy for the issuing of dispensations which is in accordance with the Council's Code of Conduct. It is attached to these Standing Orders as an appendix.
- r This policy shall apply to all meetings of the Council, its committees and subcommittees.
- s No dispensation will be awarded for any meeting where there are no minutes of the proceedings.

15. Proper Officer

- a The Proper Officer shall be either (i) the clerk or (ii) other staff member(s) nominated by the council to undertake the work of the Proper Officer when the Proper Officer is absent.
- b The Proper Officer shall:
 - i. at least three clear days before a meeting of the council, a committee and a sub-committee serve on councillors a summons, by email, confirming the time, place and the agenda provided any such email contains the electronic signature and title of the Proper Officer.
 - ii. convene a meeting of full council for the election of a new Mayor of the Council, occasioned by a casual vacancy in his office;
 - iii. facilitate inspection of the minute book by local government electors;
 - iv. retain acceptance of office forms from councillors;
 - v. retain a copy of every councillor's register of interests;
 - vi. prepare and make available all agendas and minutes in line with the provisions of these Standing Orders.
 - vii. To act as the exempting officer and respond to requests made under the Freedom of Information Act 2000 and Data Protection Act 1998, in

- accordance with and subject to the council's policies and procedures relating to the same;
- viii. receive and send general correspondence and notices on behalf of the council except where there is a resolution to the contrary;
- ix. manage the organisation, storage of, access to and destruction of information held by the council in paper and electronic form;
- x. arrange for legal deeds to be executed; See also standing order 21 below.
- xi. arrange or manage the prompt authorisation, approval, and instruction regarding any payments to be made by the council in accordance with the council's financial regulations;
- xii. refer a planning application received by the council to the Mayor or the Chairman of the Planning Committee within two working days of receipt to facilitate an extraordinary meeting if the nature of a planning application requires consideration before the next ordinary meeting of the council or Planning Committee;
- xiii. manage access to information about the council via the publication scheme; and
- xiv. retain custody of the seal of the council (if any) which shall not be used without a resolution to that effect.

 See also standing order 21 below.
- xv. receive and retain copies of byelaws made by other local authorities;

16. Responsible Financial Officer

a The council shall appoint appropriate staff member(s) to undertake the work of the Responsible Financial Officer.

17. Financial Regulations

- a The Council has established Financial Regulations for the governance and management of its finances and to meet the requirements of the audit and accountability regime in place at the time. These are attached as Part II of these Standing Orders.
- b All payments by the council shall be authorised, approved and paid in accordance with the law, proper practices and the council's financial regulations.

c The Council's proper practices will be in accordance with the most recent JPAG guidance.

18. Handling staff matters

- a A matter personal to a member of staff that is being considered by a meeting of the Personnel Committee is subject to Standing Order 12 above.
- b Subject to the council's policy regarding absences from work, the council's most senior member of staff shall notify the Chairman of the Personnel Committee of absence occasioned by illness or other reason and that person shall report such absence to Personnel Committee at its next meeting.
- c The Mayor and Chairman of the Personnel Committee shall conduct a review of the performance and annual appraisal of the work of Proper Officer. The review and appraisal shall be reported in writing and is subject to approval by resolution by Personnel Committee.
- Subject to the council's policy regarding the handling of grievance matters, the Proper Officer shall advise the Chairman of the Personnel Committee in respect of an informal or formal grievance matter, and this matter shall be reported back and progressed by resolution of the Personnel Committee or its appointed representatives.
- e Subject to the council's policy regarding the handling of grievance matters, if an informal or formal grievance matter raised by a member of staff and relates to the Mayor or Chairman of the Personnel Committee, this shall be communicated to another member of the Personnel Committee, which shall be reported back and progressed by resolution of the Personnel Committee.
- f Any persons responsible for all or part of the management of staff shall treat the written records of all meetings relating to their performance, capabilities, grievance or disciplinary matters as confidential and secure.
- The council shall keep all written records relating to employees secure. All paper records shall be secured and locked and electronic records shall be password protected and encrypted.
- h Only persons with line management responsibilities shall have access to staff records referred to in standing orders 18(f) and (g) above if so justified.

i Access and means of access by keys and/or computer passwords to records of employment referred to in standing orders 18(f) and (g) above shall be provided only to the Proper Officer and the Chairman of the Personnel Committee.

19. Requests for information

- a Requests for information held by the council shall be handled in accordance with the council's policy in respect of handling requests under the Freedom of Information Act 2000 and the Data Protection Act 1998.
- b Correspondence from, and notices served by, the Information Commissioner shall be referred by the Proper Officer to Chairman of the Policy and Resources Committee. The said committee shall have the power to do anything to facilitate compliance with the Freedom of Information Act 2000.

20. Relations with the press/media

a Requests from the press or other media for an oral or written comment or statement from the Council, its councillors or staff shall be handled in accordance with the Council's policy in respect of dealing with the press and/or other media.

21. Execution and sealing of legal deeds

- a A legal deed shall not be executed on behalf of the council unless authorised by a resolution.
- b Where any document will be a necessary step in legal proceedings on behalf of the Council it shall be signed by the Clerk to the Council, unless any enactment otherwise requires or authorises, or the Council shall have given the necessary authority to some other person.

22. Communicating Unitary Authority councillors

a An invitation to attend a meeting of the council shall be sent to the ward councillor(s) of the Unitary Authority representing the area of the council, together with the agenda for the meeting and other relevant papers.

b Unless the council determines otherwise, a copy of relevant correspondence sent to the Unitary Authority shall be sent to the ward councillor(s) representing the area of the council.

23. Restrictions on councillor activities

- a. Unless authorised by a resolution, no councillor shall:
 - i. inspect any land and/or premises which the council has a right or duty to inspect; or
 - ii. issue orders, instructions or directions.
 - iii. issue any order respecting any works which are being carried out by or on behalf of the Council.
 - iv. incur any expenditure on behalf of the council or issue an instruction to incur expenditure

Agenda No. 19



Mr Raymond Lane Saltash Town Council The Guildhall 12 Lower Fore Street Saltash Cornwall PL12 6JX

Your ref:

My ref: Date: 2018 Parking Order 22 January 2018

Dear Saltash Town Council

Re: Proposal to change car parking charges proposals - 2018 Off-Street Parking Order

I am writing to update you on our car parking proposals across Cornwall Councilowned car parks from 01 April 2018.

The first of these changes is to offer residents more flexibility in the way you pay for parking charges.

Recent investment in new technologies means that the Council will be able to offer new permit systems through 'Just Park' on the phone, app or website.

Residents will be able to buy parking permits which are fairly priced and based on a pay-per-trip basis. This will mean that regular car park users can purchase a number of car park sessions at a significantly reduced rate. This is a big improvement in particular for part-time workers, as they will be able to access the reduced rate even if they only use the car park once a week.

Our Just Park technology will also enable local businesses to easily refund car parking charges to their customers which we hope will be a great offer for local traders.

Car park charges (winter and summer tariffs) have remained the same for the last three years. This year the Council is proposing to make changes to help support the evening economy of our towns and villages, help manage the demands in our most congested areas and help to address air quality issues by encouraging the use of public transport.

Attached is the formal notice which sets out the proposed changes. Below are the key points:

From 1 April 2018:

All Cornwall Council pay and display car parks will be free in the evenings.



Konsel Kernow

Cornwall Council, Parking Services, PO BOX 664, Truro, Cornwall, TR1 9DH

Tel: 0300 1234 100 www.cornwall.gov.uk

- Car park tariffs will be standardised in our most congested areas, areas which
 are well served by public transport and/or where there is heavy demand on
 parking spaces. This means seasonal tariffs will be the same for all Council car
 parks in Falmouth, Newquay, Penzance and St Ives. In Truro the charges will
 apply all year round. We are proposing to set tariffs in the car parks in these
 areas at £1.50 per hour up to £8 to park for 24 hours. There will also continue
 to be 30 minute parking options in Falmouth, Penzance, St Ives and Truro.
- Charges for reserved spaces have remained the same for three years while in
 the same period the demand for the spaces has increased. We are therefore
 increasing the cost of reserved parking permits to bring them more into line
 with their market value. These will be able to be purchased by Direct Debit to
 help spread the cost.
- As a result of making changes in the above areas, tariffs in all other Council car parks will remain as they have done for the last three years.

You can read more about the proposals on our website www.cornwall.gov.uk

If you have any comments to make on the proposals I would be grateful to receive them no later than:

15th February 2018

To respond to this proposal, you can either:

- Visit our website www.cornwall.gov.uk/TrafficConsult once registered you will be able to submit your response.
- Email Parking Services on parking@cornwall.gov.uk, quoting the above title and indicating your support or objection to the proposals.
- Respond in writing using the attached Response Form, indicating your support or objection to the proposals and return it to the address shown at the foot of the form.

If you wish to discuss any aspect of this, please contact me.

Yours faithfully Simon Clark Policy and Monitoring Officer Parking Services – Economy, Enterprise and Environment

Tel: 0300 1234 100 Email: parking@cornwall.gov.uk

INVESTORS IN PEOPLE Konsel Kernow Cornwall Council, Parking Services, PO BOX 664, Truro, Cornwall, TR1 9DH

Tel: 0300 1234 100 www.cornwall.gov.uk



The Cornwall Council (Off Street Parking Places) Order 2018

Notice is hereby given that Cornwall Council proposes to make a new Order under Section 35(1) of the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, in accordance with Schedule 9 of the Act.

The proposed Order will revoke and replace The Cornwall Council (Off Street Parking Places) (Consolidation) Order 2017, whilst also making the following amendments

- Vary the parking charges in Truro, Falmouth, Newguay, St Ives and Penzance, as these towns have the highest traffic flows, in an effort to:
 - Facilitate efficient traffic management,
 - Encourage modal shift where alternatives are available,
 - Contribute to the management of air quality within these towns.
- 2. Remove all evening parking charges across the county.
- 3. To add to the existing season ticket offer by introducing the ability, via the mobile phone payment system, to bulk buy parking sessions at the reduced season ticket rate, and to call them off when required.
- 4. Increase reserved parking charges as a first step to bringing them in line with the current market rate.
- 5. Extend the overnight motorhome prohibition to the following car parks:

Town Quarry, Falmouth Crooklets, Bude Trenance, Newquay Summerleaze, Bude Polzeath Beach, Polzeath Gwithian Towans Helford Porthcothan The Wharf, Bude Poldhu Main, Fowey Seaton Park, Seaton Belmont, Newguay The Bridge, Seaton Seaton Beach, Seaton Mount Wise, Newquay

- 6. Cattle Market, Helston along with Lerryn will be removed from the new Order as it will no longer be in the control of the Council
- 7. Following a request from St Columb Town Council, and to support other on-street parking amendments in the town, the parking at Lower Fore Street, Columb will be amended to 1 hour maximum stay with no return within 2 hours.

This Notice is intended to provide an indication of the Order's provisions. A copy of the draft Order, may be inspected at any Cornwall Council One Stop Shop (check locally for opening times) using the public access computers. Copies may also be viewed at www.cornwall.gov.uk/TrafficConsult

Representations (objection or support) to the proposed Order should be in writing and received by 15th February 2018 - addressed to: Parking Consultation, PO BOX 664,

Response Form

| Scheme Name: | 2018 Off-Street Parking Order |
|---|---|
| Start of Response Pe | eriod: 24 January 2018 |
| End of Response Per | riod: 15 February 2018 |
| Title: Mr 🗌 | Mrs Miss Ms Other |
| Vame: leese print in black capitals | |
| Organisation: if applicable) | |
| Address: | |
| ******* | |
| 4000 | Postcode: |
| i-mail: | |
| Date: | |
| 76E. | ··· ·· ·· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · |
| What is your view (please tick one) | on this scheme? Support Object |
| Please use the bor proposals. If you | x below to provide any comments you have with regards to these wish to object, you must state your reasons for doing so. |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| ********** | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |

Please continue overleaf if necessary

Please return this form to: Parking Services , PO BOX 664, Truro, Cornwall, TR1 9DH

Data Protection and Freedom of Information Notice

Any information which you may provide in response to this proposal shall be processed by Conwall Council in accordance with the Data Protection Act 1998 for the purposes of processing this proposal.

Please note that it may be necessary for the Council to include any information you provide in publicly available documents or to disclose it to third parties under the Freedom of Information Act 2000 or the Environments Information Regulations 2004. Please contact the above if you have any concerns or queries regarding the processing of your information.

| NAME OF PARKING PLACE | POSITION IN WHICH A VEHICLE MAY WAIT | PERMITTED CLASS OF VEHICLE | NORMAL DAYS OF OPERATION | NORMAL HOURS OF OPERATION | MAXIMUM PERIOD OF WAITING | SUMMER SCALE OF CHARGES (Inclusive of VAT) 1 APRIL - 31 OCTOBER (Unless Specified) | WINTER SCALE OF CHARGES (Inclusive of VAT) 1 NOVEMBER - 31 MARCH (Unless Specified) | SEASON TICKETS, MULTI-PURCHASE SESSIONS & PERMIT CHARGES (Inclusive of VAT) |
|---------------------------|--|--|-----------------------------|------------------------------|---|---|---|---|
| Alexandra Square, Saltash | Where provided, whally within a Parking Space or as directed by an authorised officer of the Council. Re Vehicle may pask on any restrictions or where any such area has been marked as reserved unless the Driver has been authorised to so park by the Council. | Meter cars Javailé carrisges Motor cycles Commercial Vehicles | All Bays | All Heart | Unwattiched during the period of a visite parking tocket or permit. | Monetay - Sabarday (0900 - 1600) Up to 1 hour - 60.50 1 to 2 hours - 61.50 2 to 3 hours - 61.20 3 to 4 hours - 64.00 Weekly - 628.00 Certmarcial Vehicles Per hours - 61.00 | Monday - Saturday (1990 - 1800) Up to 1 hour - 60,50 1 to 3 hours - 61,50 2 to 3 hours - 63,20 3 to 4 hours - 64,40 24 hours - 64,60 Weekly - £28,60 Communical Vehicles See hours - 61,50 | Season Ticket £70.00 - 1 Mooth £90.00 - 2 Mooths £100.00 - 6 Mooths £100.00 - 6 Mooths £1.5 per 24 hour Sessions £1.5 per 24 hour Session Minimum purchase £30.00 Beserved Permit |
| | | | , | | | 24 hours - £10,00 (1600 - 0900) No Charge Semilay (All hours) | 24 hours - £10.00 (1600 - 0900) No Charge Sunday (All hours) | (270.30 - Annual Rover Ticket Accepted |
| Selle Vue East. Saltash | Where provided, wholly within a Parking Space or as directed by an authorised officer of the Council, No Vehicle may park on any restrictions or where any such area has been marked as reserved unless the Driver has been withorised to so park by the Council | Woter Chris Invalid carringes Motor cycles | All Days | All Hours | Unvestricted during the period of a valid periong below ar permit | No Charge Monday - Saburday (1990 - 1600) Up to 1 hour - 60.30 1 to 2 hours - 61.50 2 to 3 hours - 61.20 2 to 4 hours - 64.40 24 hours - 64.90 Weekly - 626.00 | No Charge Menday - Sahurday (9900 - 14600) Up to 1 hour - 28.50 1 to 3 hours - 61.50 2 to 3 hours - 61.20 2 to 4 hours - 64.40 24 hours - 64.50 Weekly - 628.50 | Season Ticket \$30.00 - 1 Month £90.00 - 3 Months £100.00 - 6 Months £300.00 - Annual Multi-purchase Sessions £1.15 per 24 hour Session Minimum purchase \$30.00 |
| | | | _ | | | (1606 - 0900) No Charge Sunday (All bours) No Charge | (1600 - 0900) No Charge Sunday (All hours) No Charge | Roser Ticket Accepted |
| Selle Vue West, Seltash | Where provided, wholly within a Parking Scotce or as directed by an authorised officer of the County!. No Vehicle may pack on any restrictions or where any such area has been marked as retained and the the Driver has been authorised to so park by the Council. | Reter cars levels carriages Mater cycles | All Days | All Hears | 3 hours with no return within 3 hours | Honday - Saturday (0900 - 1600) Up to 1 hour - £0.50 1 to 2 hours - £1.60 2 to 3 hours - £3.20 | Monday - Saturday (0900 - 1600) Up to 2 hour - £0.50 1 to 3 hours - £1.60 2 to 3 hours - £3.20 | Not Applicable |
| | 1,000 | | | | | (1600 - 0900) No Charge | (1600 - 0900) No Charge | |
| | | | | | | Sumday (All hours) No Charge | Sunday (All hours) No Charge | |

Date: 01.02.18.

Date: 01.02.18.

| NAME OF PARKING PLACE | POSITION IN WHICH A VEHICLE MAY WAIT | PERMITTED CLASS OF VEHICLE | NORMAL DAYS OF OPERATION | NORMAL HOURS OF OPERATION | MAXIMUM PERIOD OF WAITING | SUMMER SCALE OF CHARGES (Inclusive of VAT) 1 APRIL - 31 OCTOBER (Unless Specified) | WINTER SCALE OF CHARGES (Inclusive of VAT) 1 NOVEMBER - 31 MARCH (Unless Specified) | SEASON TICKETS, MULTI-PURCHASE SESSIONS & PERMIT CHARGES (Inclusive of VAT) |
|---------------------------------|---|---|-----------------------------|------------------------------|--|--|--|--|
| Culver Read, Saltash | Where provided, wholly within a Parking Space or as directed by an authorized officer of the Council, No Vehicle may park on any restrictions or where any such area has been marked an exercised unless the Driver has been authorized to so park by the Council. | Motor cars Invalid carriages Motor cycles | All Days | All Hours | 3 hours with no return within 3 hours Unrestricted during the period of a visid reserved permit | Honday : Seturday (0900 - 1600) Up to 1 bour - £0.30 1 to 2 hours - £1.60 2 to 3 hours - £3.20 | Monday - Saturday (0900 - 1600) Up to 1 hour - 40.30 1 to 2 hours - £1.60 2 to 3 hours - £3.20 | Reserved Permit £447.00 - Annual |
| | Light | | | | | (1600 - 0900) No Charge | (1600 - 0900) No Charge | |
| | | | | | | Sunday (All hours) No Charge | Sunday (All hours) No Charge | |
| Grenfell Avenue, Saltash | Where provided, wholly within a Parking Space or as directed by an authorised officer of the Council. No Vahicle may park on any restrictions or where any such area has been mericed as reserved unless the Driver has been authorised to so park by the Council. | Motor cars Motor cycles | All Cays | All Hours | Westricted during the period of a valid parking ticket or permit | Not Applicable | Not Applicable | Permits issued by Corowall Council Housing Department |
| Jubilee Green, Suitash | Where provided, wholly within a Parking Space or as directed by an authorsaid efficier of the Council, 80 Vehicle may park on any restrictions or where any such area has been marked as reserved unless the Driver has been authorised to so park by the Council | Motor cars Irwalid carriages Motor cycles | All Days | All Hours | 60 Hours | All Days [All Hours] No Charge | All Days (All Hours) No Charge | Not Applicable |
| Longstone Park, Saltash | Where provided, whally within a Parking Space or as directed by an authorised afficer of the Council. No Vehicle may park on any restrictions or where any such area has been marked as reserved unless the Driver has been marked as reserved unless the Driver has been council. | Motor cars Invalid carriages Motor cycles | All Days | AllHout | 24 History | All Days (All Hours) No Charge | All Days (All Hours) No Charge | Not Applicable |
| Werfelton Leizure Park, Seltash | Where provided, wholly within a Parking Space or as directed by an authorised efficer of the Council. No Vehicle may park on any restrictions or where any such area has been marked as reserved unless the Oriver has been authorised to so park by the Council. | Motor cars Invalid certages Motor cycles Coaches | All Days | All Hours | 24 Hours | All Days (All Hours) No Charge | All Days (All Hours) No Charge | Not Applicable |

Agenda No. 20C



Mr Ray Lane Clerk To Saltash Town Council The Guildhall 12 Lower Fore Street Saltash PL12 61X Your ref: My ref: Date:

PA18/00436 24 January 2018

Dear Mr Lane

Application PA18/00436

Proposal Proposed replacement root crop store
Location Land Pt Os 7614 Roods Hill Hatt Cornwall

Applicant Mr S Congdon Grid Ref 239749 / 61147

The above-mentioned application has been received by the Planning and Sustainable Development Service and is available for you to view and submit comments through the "Consultee Access Site".

- You can access the application on which we are inviting your comments using the following link: http://planning.cornwall.gov.uk/online-applications
- Retrieve the application by entering the reference quoted above and then clicking the "Search" button.
- Details can then be found by clicking the "Documents" tab and then selecting "View Associated Documents".
- 4. If possible we would prefer that comments are submitted online by registering then selecting the "submit comments" icon and completing the online form which will immediately update our database and ensure that your comments are made available to the public.

If your response is likely to be longer than the equivalent of one side of A4 paper, please also submit a short executive summary of your comments.

If you are unable to submit comments online, any views you may have on the application should emailed to planning@cornwall.gov.uk quoting reference number PA18/00436 by 14 February 2018.

In accordance with Section 47 of the Copyright, Design and Patents Act 1988 Cornwall Council, as the Local Planning Authority, gives permission for Town and Parish Councils to reproduce planning applications if they are to be used in any format at their meetings (projecting paperless plans or hard copy).

Kind regards

James Hills Senior Development Officer Planning and Sustainable Development Service Email: planning@cornwall.gov.uk Tel: 01579 341454

> Planning and Sustainable Development Service Cornwall Council

planning@cornwall.gov.uk Tel: 0300 1234 151 www.cornwall.gov.uk

Agenda No. 21B

(Extract from the draft minutes of the Cornwall Council Licensing Act Sub Committee held on Wednesday 3rd January 2018).



Saltash Town Council The Guildhall 12 Lower Fore Street Saltash PL12 6JX

Your ref:

My ref: The Brunel Inn Date: 22 January 2018

RECEIVED 2 5 JAN 2018

Dear Saltash Town Council,

Licensing Act 2003 – Application for Grant of Premises Licence The Brunel Inn, Saltash.

I refer to your representation in relation to the application for grant of premises licence in respect of the above.

I would confirm that the Council's Licensing Act sub-committee considered the application on 03 January 2018. I have attached, in order to confirm the decision, an extract from the draft minutes. A full copy of the published minutes will be available in due course on request.

I would inform you that where a person who made a relevant representation desires to contend (a) that the licence ought not to have been granted, or (b) that, on granting the licence, the licensing authority ought to have imposed different or additional conditions, or to have taken a step mentioned in subsection (4) (b) or (c) of section 18 of the Act then there is a right of appeal.

Such appeal must be made to the magistrates' court for the petty sessions area in which the premises concerned are situated and must be commenced by notice of appeal given by the appellant to the justices' chief executive for the magistrates' court within the period of 21 days beginning with the day on which the appellant was notified by the licensing authority of the decision appealed against.

Please contact the Licensing Service should you have any queries.

Yours sincerely

Kathryn Woodfinden Licensing Officer Public Health and Protection

Tel: 01208 893212 Email: <u>kwoodfinden@cornwall.gov.uk</u>



Cornwall Council, Wadebridge One Stop Shop, Higher Trenant Road, Wadebridge PL27 6TW

Tel: 0300 1234 100 www.comwall.gov.uk

Agenda item

Application for the Variation of a Premises Licence -The Brunel Inn, 92 Fore Street, Saltash, PL12 6AE

Meeting of Licensing Act Sub Committee, Wednesday, 3rd January, 2018 10.00 am (Item LASC/17)
 Minutes:

The Chairman invited parties present to introduce themselves and outlined the procedure to those present.

Licensing Officer's Submission

The Sub Committee gave consideration to a report (previously circulated) in which determination was sought for an application for a Grant/Variation of a Premises Licence in respect of The Brunel Inn, 92 Fore Street, Saltash, PL12 6AE, presented by the Licensing Officer.

Members' Questions

There were no questions from Members,

Applicant/Applicant's Representative's Submission

The Applicant and the Applicant's Representative attended the meeting. The Applicant's representative spoke in support of the application, highlighting the following points:

- 1. The Manager of Star Pubs & Bars Ltd currently oversees the Brunel Inn and 41 other public houses.
- The DPS is a local business man and the retired secretary of Saltash Social Club and former Vice Chairman of the Rugby Club and is well known within the locality.
- It had been a more viable business venture with longer opening hours.
- The Brunel Inn had been closed for four weeks up to mid-November for the £300,000 renovation programme.
- There had been 12 new jobs created.
- The music played had been altered to Motown and Soul only.
- 7. Sales had increased 90% from November 2016 to November 2017.
- Opening hours were currently unrestricted and the request had been now to open at 08:00 to allow for breakfast to cater for the 10 en-suite rooms. There would be no alcohol sales at breakfast.

- The business had been operating under a TEN during November and December 2017 on Fridays and Saturdays with a licence until 01:00.
- 10. There had been only one incident of disturbance logged during December and this had been on Christmas. Eve and had been a family dispute handled appropriately by the staff; the details of which had been captured on CCTV and had occurred outside of the establishment.
- 11. There are two door supervisors in place on a Friday and Saturday, with no re-admittance after 01:00, an entry fee for admittance after 00:00 and after 21:00 no drinks are allowed to be consumed in the outside smoking area.
- 12. No representations had been made by Environmental Health with the TEN in place.
- 13. This is now a family friendly establishment with both a men's and ladies darts team and a Pool team.
- 14. If the Licence were granted it would lead to more employment.
- Conditions had been agreed following consultation with Police Licensing and Environmental Health as detailed within the report.
- The establishment had been leased by Heineken since 2005 that were a well-know and established business, whose portfolio consisted of over 1000 venues.
- 17. The applicant had wanted a chance to make a success out of the venture and if not run correctly or the conditions were not adhered to would only expect to be back to the Licensing Act Sub-Committee to be reviewed.

Members' Questions

In response to Members questions the following points of clarification were given:

The refurbishment had taken from late September 2017 to 13 November, 2017 and had included the ground floor, kitchen, outside décor and patio area.

Responsible Authorities' Submissions

The Senior Licensing Compliance Officer attended the meeting, and spoke in objection to the application, expressing concerns relating to:

- The requested late timings for Fridays and Saturdays where the dynamics of clientele after.
- 2. The impact on nearby residential properties and the hospital.

He also commented that it had been encouraging to hear that the establishment was a family friendly thriving environment, offering more local job opportunities.

The Police Licensing Officer attended the meeting and spoke in objection to the application, expressing concerns relating to:

- 1. There had been two prior applications submitted that had been subsequently withdrawn.
- 2. Late night opening hours on Fridays and Saturdays and the associated noise.
- 3. The location as it had been nearby to residential dwelling and other businesses.
- Five calls to the Police, four of which had occurred on the re-opening weekend and one on Christmas Eve, noting the latter was outside of the premises. Each call and its purpose was described.
- 5. Residents had contacted the Police direct with concerns.

She also commented that the Police had met with the applicant and spent time considering several conditions and that this had demonstrated a willingness to work with the Police. Also that it had been valuable that incidents had been reported.

Members' Questions

In response to Members questions the following points of clarification were given:

- 1. The incidents on the opening night had related to different individuals,
- The premises had received Police attention prior to the refurbishment, however this application had been considered on its own merits and as a new application.

Other Persons' Submissions

Representatives from Saltash Town Council attended attended the meeting and spoke in objection to the application, expressing concerns relating to:

- 1. The safety of the community and residents.
- 2. Potential increase in crime and anti-social behaviour
- 3. Reports already made to the Police.
- 4. Reports of Fire Exits not open at the premises.

Members' Questions

There were no questions from Members.

Members' Questions of all Parties

In response to Members questions the following points of clarification were given:

- Police reported incidents had not been included within their representation as they had wished to give exact numbers and express gratitude that the issues had been reported at the hearing.
- Incidents reported to the Police had been mostly on the re-opening weekend, which had attracted additional customers.
- 3. There had been one log created by the Police in response to one resident.
- The Town Council had two or three reports from residents.
- 5. Closing times of other public houses within the local area had not been seen as relevant to this application.
- The Police suggested a closing time of 01:00 with 20 30 minutes drinking up time.

Applicant's Final Submission

In their final submission, the Representative highlighted that:

- 1. Apart from the opening weekend and Christmas Eve there had been no reported nuisance.
- 2. There had been several conditions already agreed with the Police.
- Three residents had objected although they had not been in attendance to present any reasons.
- 4. The premises would be a valuable asset to the community.
- 5. All fire exits would be open.

Points of Clarification Requested by the Sub Committee

Further to the Representative's final submission, the following points of clarification were made:

To ensure the business was viable the supply of alcohol until 01:00 is requested.

It was moved by Councillor May, seconded by Councillor Nolan, and

RESOLVED that under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) the public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act – namely: Information in respect of which any claim to professional

privilege could be maintained in legal proceedings - and that proceedings apart from the resolution passed shall remain confidential.

It was moved by Councillor May, seconded by Councillor Nolan, and

RESOLVED that the press and public be re-admitted.

Upon re-admission of the press and public, the Chairman invited the Legal Officer to advise of the Sub Committee's proposal.

It was moved by Councillor May, seconded by Councillor Martin, and

RESOLVED that

The application for a variation of the premises licence for the Brunel Inn, 92 Fore Street, Saltash be refused.

Members in reaching their decision considered the report, all the representations, the relevant provisions of the Licensing Act 2003 and delegated legislation made thereunder, the guidance given to licensing authorities by the Government, and the Council's own statement of licensing policy.

The application was to allow for the licensing activity for the performance of dance and to amend the hours for live and recorded music, late night refreshment, the supply of alcohol and the hours the premises are open to the public. The application also requested the substitution of proposed conditions agreed by the Police for the existing conditions.

The application received representations from the Council's Licensing Compliance Team, the Police, the local Town Council, the local Ward Member and five other persons.

The representations that most concerned members regarded the existing crime and disorder and anti-social behaviour in the area, particularly on Fridays and Saturdays and the potential for an increase in such activities should the application be granted.

Members had to carefully consider whether the effect this application would have on the licensing objectives, particularly the prevention of crime and disorder objective. They also had to take into account that there were existing crime and disorder and anti-social behaviour issues in the area.

Members concluded that they could not allow the increase in activities and hours without appropriate conditions and could not allow the hours applied for on Friday and Saturday nights. The applicant offered proposed conditions which were agreed by the Police included conditions relating to CCTV, door supervision, incident books, escape routes, exit doors, fire doors, notices, noise prevention measures and a Challenge 25 policy. These conditions would replace the existing conditions.

Members found that these conditions would prevent the licensing objectives from being undermined. They could therefore grant the application but subject to all the proposed conditions and for the hours applied for except for the following:

Recorded Music (indoors)

Friday - Saturday 12:00 - 00:30

Performance of Dance (indoors)

Friday - Saturday 12:00 - 00:30

Supply of Alcohol (for consumption on and off the premises)

Friday - Saturday 10:00 - 00:30

Hours premises are open to the public

Friday - Saturday 08:00 - 01:00

It was agreed with the applicant that the hours for Christmas Eve and Christmas Day would remain the same.